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THREE-YEAR RESULTS

Wolverine World Wide, Inc. (NYSE:WWW) is a leading global
marketer of branded footwear, apparel and accessories. The Company’s
portfolio of owned and licensed brands includes Bates®, Cat® Footwear,
Harley-Davidson® Footwear, Hush Puppies®, Merrell®, Patagonia®
Footwear, Sebago® and Wolverine®. In 2006, nearly 47 million pairs of
footwear bearing the Company’s brand names were sold in nearly 180
countries.
The Company vision is “To Excite Consumers Around the World With
Innovative Footwear and Apparel That Bring Style to Purpose.” We are
making progress against achieving this vision by driving our brands to
global leadership positions
while pursuing initiatives
to extend into categories
beyond footwear. We are
also dedicated to
designing products that
meet the needs of our
consumers, provide
exceptional performance
and reflect each brand’s
unique point-of-view.
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A S P E C I A L O F F E R F O R O U R S H A R E H O L D E R S Experience our brands for
yourself. Shareholders are invited to take advantage of a special offer on Company products. Log onto
www.wolverineworldwide.com and click the “Shop” link in the upper right-hand corner to find out more
about this offer and browse our product selection. When you check out, enter the general shareholder
promotional code: 1909-WWWSHARE to receive this special offer.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
2006
OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS (in millions)
Revenue
Earnings before income taxes and minority interest
Income taxes
Net earnings
Working capital
Cash provided by operating activities
Capital expenditures

$ 1,141.9
122.3
38.6
83.6
364.4
108.3
17.1

KEY RATIOS
Gross margin percentage
Selling and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue
Effective income tax rate
Net earnings as a percentage of revenue
Total debt to total capitalization
Return on average equity
Return on average assets
Revenue per employee (in thousands)(1)

$

PER SHARE OF COMMON STOCK
Diluted net earnings
Cash dividends declared

38.7%
27.9%
31.6%
7.3%
4.1%
17.2%
12.5%
252.0

2005

2004

$ 1,061.0
111.2
36.8
74.5
316.7
117.3
19.2

$ 991.9
97.1
30.9
65.9
320.6
104.2
18.1

38.2%
27.5%
33.1%
7.0%
6.6%
16.2%
11.6%
$ 235.7

37.7%
27.6%
31.8%
6.6%
8.7%
15.1%
10.8%
$ 193.2

$

1.27
.26

$ 1.09
.19

58,675
4,502

60,474
5,134

(2)

$

CORPORATE STATISTICS
Shares used for computing diluted earnings per share (in thousands)(2)
Number of employees at year end

1.47
.30
56,931
4,532

Based on the total number of employees at year end.
All amounts are adjusted for the Company’s three-for-two stock split in the form of a stock dividend distributed on
February 1, 2005.

(1)
(2)

M A R K E T I N F O R M AT I O N
Wolverine World Wide, Inc. common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “WWW.”
The following table shows the high and low stock prices on the New York Stock Exchange and dividends declared by calendar
quarter for 2006 and 2005. The number of shareholders of record on February 21, 2007 was 1,388.
2006
Stock Price
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter
Cash Dividends Declared Per Share
First quarter
Second quarter
Third quarter
Fourth quarter

2005

High

Low

High

Low

$24.21
25.18
26.46
30.20

$20.96
20.26
22.27
25.41

$23.65
25.70
25.02
22.95

$20.04
18.90
20.48
19.35

2006

2005

$.075
.075
.075
.075

$.065
.065
.065
.065

A quarterly dividend of $.09 per share was declared during the first quarter of fiscal 2007.
All prices and dividends are adjusted for the Company’s three-for-two stock split distributed on February 1, 2005.
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to our SHAREHOLDERS
2006 OVERVIEW
We are pleased to report that 2006 was a very strong year, with the
Company delivering its seventh and sixth consecutive years of
revenue and earnings growth, respectively. Both revenue and
earnings reached all-time record levels, with revenue growing
7.6 percent to $1.142 billion and earnings per share increasing
15.7 percent to $1.47 per share. Our consistent performance is
demonstrated by the fact that the Company has generated four
consecutive years of double-digit earnings per share growth.
In 2006, earnings per share grew more than two times faster than
revenue, as strong organic growth and an expanding operating
margin more than offset planned investment spending to support the
development of our new Patagonia® Footwear and Merrell® Apparel
initiatives, the expense relating to the new accounting rules for
share-based compensation and the impact of anti-dumping duties
levied by the European Union for certain footwear imported from
China and Vietnam. Through highly focused actions, the
management team was able to more than offset the impact of
these three items.
The Company’s global growth initiatives continue to produce strong
results. In 2006, consumers in nearly 180 countries purchased nearly
47 million pairs of footwear bearing our brand names, over 56
percent of which were consumed outside the U.S. As a result,
international revenue increased 19.5 percent and now accounts for
more than one-third of the Company’s sales.
Europe continues to be a major source of growth with revenue
increasing nearly ten percent to a record $218.9 million.
The Caterpillar®, Harley-Davidson®, Hush Puppies®, Merrell® and
Sebago® brands all contributed to this solid performance.
North American revenue grew 4.0 percent, with increases generated
by our Caterpillar®, Harley-Davidson®, Hush Puppies®, Merrell® and
Wolverine® Boot brands more than offsetting declines in the Bates®,
Stanley®, Private Label and Sebago® businesses. North American
earnings increased at a double digit pace, due in large part to a more
favorable sales mix of higher margin product as well as improved
operational efficiency.
C R E AT I N G S H A R E H O L D E R VA L U E
The Company’s operating model is designed to generate cash
through a combination of strong earnings growth and efficient asset
utilization. To that end, we are pleased to report that during 2006,
we generated $108.3 million in cash from operating activities. Since
1999, our business model has generated nearly $692 million in cash
from operating activities. This cash has been used to acquire new
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Timothy J. O’Donovan

Blake W. Krueger

Chairman and CEO

President and COO

brands and businesses, fund geographic expansion and to create
value for our shareholders through share repurchase and
dividend programs.
This past year, we returned nearly $42.5 million to our shareholders
through the Company’s share repurchase program. In February
2007, our Board approved a 20.0 percent increase in our annual
dividend payout, thus marking the fourteenth consecutive year of
increases. Since 1993, company dividends have grown at an average
annual rate exceeding 23 percent.
From a valuation standpoint, our shareholders received a total
return of 28.5 percent in 2006, outpacing the appreciation of the
S&P 500 (15.8 percent) and the Dow (19.1 percent). Over the past
three years, Wolverine’s consistent and strong financial performance
has provided a cumulative return to our shareholders in excess of
117 percent.
S T R AT E G I C D I R E C T I O N
In 2006, we began the execution of Project 2.0, a strategic growth
plan designed to drive Company revenue to $2.0 billion within the
next seven to nine years. Project 2.0 is built on evolving the
Company from a leading global marketer of branded footwear into
a global multi-branded footwear and apparel company. This goal is
articulated in our vision, which is:

“To Excite Consumers Around the World
with Innovative Footwear and Apparel
that Bring Style to Purpose.”
Project 2.0 identified several other growth drivers that, when
achieved, would turn this vision into a reality. A summary of the
progress made toward the achievement of these growth drivers in
2006 follows:
Extending key brands beyond footwear — During 2006, the
Merrell® team laid the groundwork for a Fall 2007 launch of its first
apparel line targeted at a global style-conscious active-outside
consumer. The initial collection, which offers innovative style and

uniquely constructed performance outdoor apparel for men and
women, was developed and previewed with key retailers and the
brand’s international trading partners in late 2006. Initial deliveries
of Merrell® Apparel will begin in the summer of 2007.
Strengthening our global brand portfolio — Our brand portfolio
was strengthened with the spring 2007 launch of Patagonia®
Footwear, which successfully added a new product category to one
of the world’s premier outdoor brands. Retailers responded
favorably and are placing solid initial orders.
Pursuing product excellence — We are proud to report that the
footwear industry recognized our commitment to product
innovation once again as an annual poll of footwear retailers,
administered by Footwear Plus magazine, resulted in our Merrell®
and Wolverine® brands being awarded top honors for Design
Excellence in the Outdoor and Work categories, respectively. It is an
honor to be recognized by our peers and business partners for our
team’s dedication to the pursuit of product excellence. This
achievement marks the eighth and sixth consecutive years that the
Wolverine® and Merrell® brands, respectively, received these awards.
Leveraging the supply chain into a competitive advantage —
We have stepped up our focus on global supply chain management
to achieve a cost advantage, reduce complexity, shorten time to
market, improve service levels and raise the level of product quality.
To achieve these goals, several important organizational changes
were made in early 2006 to flatten and strengthen our Global
Operations Group (GOG) which manages the Company’s global
sourcing, production, logistics and distribution operations.
The management team took actions which minimized the negative
gross margin impact of European Union anti-dumping duties while
executing initiatives which contributed to gross margin expansion.
For 2006, gross margin expanded a net 50 basis points over
2005 levels.
Managing our brands’ presence at retail — We are dedicated to
reaching our consumers at the point-of-sale in several ways:
Dedicated Branded Shop-in-Shops and Concept Stores — Key
U.S. retailers and our international licensees and distributors
operate brand-specific shop-in-shops (2,300) and concept stores
(400) which showcase and market our Caterpillar®, Hush
Puppies®, Merrell®, Sebago® and Wolverine® brands. These
locations provide the consumer access to a very broad selection of
styles while solidifying the brand message and imagery.

Our Retail Division — In the U.S. we market and showcase our
brands through 16 Track ’N Trail® stores, 66 better-grade outlet
stores, and consumer-direct websites. This division had a strong
year with total revenue growing 8.0 percent and a percent samestores sales increase in the mid-single digits.
THE TEAM FOR THE FUTURE
Our Company is committed to ethical business practices and the
protection of shareholders’ interests. This commitment is supported
through oversight by a highly qualified and engaged Board of
Directors. In 2006, the makeup of the Board of Directors underwent
several changes. The first was the retirement of Donald (Don)
V. Fites in April after seven years of exceptional service. We
would like to thank Don for his many contributions to the
Company’s success.
In July, two new highly qualified executives joined the Wolverine
Board — Jeffrey M. Boromisa, Executive Vice President of
Kellogg International; President, Asia Pacific and Senior Vice
President of Kellogg Company, a leading global cereal and
specialty food company; and Blake W. Krueger, the Company’s
President and COO. We welcome both to our Board and look
forward to their contributions to the Company’s future successes.
We would also like to announce that following the April 2007
annual meeting of shareholders, Tim O’Donovan will step down as
CEO and turn over this responsibility to Blake Krueger, who has
been an executive officer of the Company since 1993 and its
President and COO since October 2005. Tim will continue as the
non-executive Chairman of the Board while supporting Blake’s
transition into his expanded role as President and CEO.
S U M M A RY
In closing, 2006 was a very strong year for Wolverine World Wide.
We produced excellent financial results while investing in our brands
for the future. We made significant progress against our Project 2.0
Strategic Growth Plan, and began a smooth management succession
plan, which will result in a strong team armed with the tools to turn
our vision for the Company into a reality.

Timothy J. O’Donovan
Chairman and CEO

Blake W. Krueger
President and COO
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Global Lifestyle Brands
■ The Company’s portfolio of lifestyle brands appeals to a diverse range of

consumers in all corners of the world. During 2006, nearly 47 million pairs
of Company-branded footwear were marketed in nearly 180 countries
through our network of distributors and licensees and owned operations in
the U.S., Canada, the United Kingdom and Europe.
Our global brands are strong:
■ There are few lifestyle brands as iconic as Harley-Davidson®. Since 1997,

this great brand’s DNA has been injected into a line of footwear designed
for consumers who embrace the brand’s lifestyle.
■ For Spring 2007, Patagonia® Footwear launched globally. One of the most

highly regarded outdoor brands now has an exceptional eco-friendly
footwear offering for the global consumer.
■ Unencumbered by borders or level of expertise, Merrell® invites everyone

to define the outdoors by their own rules. With a product offering ranging
from everyday casual footwear to feature-laden, high-technology styles for
intense outdoor activity, no other outdoor brand is as inclusive as Merrell.
In 2006, over 12.8 million pairs of Merrell® Footwear were sold globally as
consumers accepted the brand’s invitation – Let’s Get Outside™!
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More Than Just Footwear
■ The Company is transforming from a multi-brand global marketer of

footwear to a multi-brand global footwear and apparel company. By
designing and providing market-right, innovative footwear and apparel, our
brand teams will expand product offerings to fulfill the many facets of the
brands’ respective consumers’ lifestyles.
■ The Company will be adding apparel to Merrell’s brand offering in Fall

2007. Positioned at the intersection of performance and style, Merrell’s
initial apparel collections for men and women feature innovative styling and
performance, which complement the brand’s footwear offering – Merrell®®:
performance apparel designed for the active outdoor lifestyle but styled for
everyday use.
■ The Wolverine®® brand team successfully migrated its apparel program from

a third-party licensing arrangement to an owned-wholesale business in early
2007. The team also expanded the apparel offering to include a wider range
of rugged casual, performance-oriented apparel designed specifically for the
brand’s core consumer. Wolverine®® – head-to-toe products for consumers
who need rugged, authentic footwear, apparel and accessories that work in
active outdoor environments.
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Innovation is Everything
■ We embrace the philosophy that only brands with a unique

point-of-view will capture the attention of the global consumer –
Innovation is everything!
■ Whether it is the application of a standard

material in a new and imaginative way, or
designing new performance features into Merrell’s
casual footwear, innovation is the common theme.
This same approach to design is being applied to
Merrell® Apparel, which employs new fabrication
processes such as Merrell® Slick SeamTM technology, resulting in
a stitch-free garment that delivers when performance counts.
■ Long known for its superior technical outerwear, Patagonia®

now includes footwear that is ecologically responsible while
providing exceptional performance for trekking, adventure travel
or surfside pursuits. With a goal of delivering the very best
product which has the least impact on the environment,
Patagonia® Footwear designers are incorporating new ways of
using renewable materials like hemp, which is imbedded into
outsoles to improve durability while requiring less rubber.
■ In the world of work and industrial footwear, the Wolverine®

brand is the undisputed leader in developing innovative comfort
technology. The journey began in the early 1990’s with the
launch of Wolverine® DuraShocks®, a patented comfort system
which gave the brand a strategic advantage in the marketplace.
The team stays ahead of the competition through continuous
innovation which has led to Wolverine’s current offering of work
boots and rugged outdoor footwear featuring Wolverine
MultiShoxTM comfort technology.
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Global Design Network
■ From locations around the globe including London, Montreal,

and Hong Kong, and U.S. cities like Portland, Oregon,
Burlington, Vermont and Rockford, Michigan – “Going
where the talent is” has led the Company to create a global
network of designers who live with our brands’ consumers
and provide a unique in-market point-of-view to our product
development process.
■ The Company’s brands leverage this global network to bring

innovative product to the market. Our Bates® designers, when
asked to develop military product for use in harsh mountain
climates, harnessed the strength of this network and
developed a mountaineering boot which utilizes proprietary
technologies previously applied in our Wolverine® and
Merrell® brands.
■ The drive for innovation and the involvement of the very best

global design talent translates to millions of satisfied
customers around the globe. For an eighth consecutive year,
the Wolverine® brand received the Design Excellence award in
the Work category by the trade publication, Footwear Plus.
Merrell® Footwear received the Design Excellence award in
the Outdoor category for a sixth consecutive year.
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Expansion into Emerging Markets
■ Global brand building has been woven into the Company’s fabric

since 1959, the year in which the freshly introduced Hush Puppies®
brand was launched through licensing agreements in the U.K. and
Japan. Today, by blending its comfort casual heritage with fresh,
exciting styling, Hush Puppies® continues to be our most global brand
as more than 18 million pairs of Hush Puppies® contemporary casual
footwear became part of the wardrobes of consumers living in more
than 135 markets worldwide.
■ The strength of the Hush Puppies® brand name and the iconic Basset

Hound are leading geographic expansion and growth in emerging
markets. Hush Puppies® has a growing presence in China which is
being fueled through an expanding network of approximately 145
licensee-operated brand specific concept stores and shop-in-shops.
■ In Russia, Cat® Footwear has more than doubled its pairs sold since

aligning with a distributor who is dedicated to brand building and
long-term growth. Merrell® Footwear has entered and already
established a significant business in the Russian market.
■ Our network of owned operations, distributors and licensees provides

a unique platform for continued growth and for launching other
Company brands, product categories and new businesses in markets
around the world.
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The Growth Opportunity
in Europe
■ Over the past several years, Europe has been a major

contributor to the Company’s growth as revenue generated in
that market rose from 8.1 percent in 2001 to 19.2 percent
in 2006.
■ Merrell® Footwear continues to experience dramatic expansion

in Europe, growing at an aggressive double-digit pace the past
three years. The brand’s distributors are serving European
consumers through a combination of traditional retail and 36
dedicated Merrell® concept stores or shop-in-shops.
■ Europe is Cat® Footwear’s largest market, accounting for over

one-third of the pairs sold globally. The strength of the brand
has been centered primarily on the UK market, but a new
organization structure has been established to drive further
growth in other countries within the European Union.
■ Hush Puppies® and Sebago® also have a strong presence in

Europe, generating 21 percent and 50 percent, respectively, of
each brand’s global pairage in that market.
■ As the world’s largest market for better-grade footwear and

more than twenty percent larger than the footwear market in
the United States, Europe is a growth opportunity for all
Company brands.
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A Global Business Model
■ Wolverine World Wide is a global enterprise comprised of

eight internationally-recognized brands, a retail division
with 82 owned locations in the U.S., and manufacturing
and sourcing operations located around the world.
■ The Company owns its operations in the United States,

Canada and most of Europe and employs a central support
services business model which creates a distinct competitive
advantage in customer services and other critical
operations. Our enterprise resource planning software
provides a centralized and uniform systems platform for
processing the wide range of information needed to
manage the business. As both a stable and flexible
platform, this software has allowed nearly seamless
integration of new brands and businesses into the
Wolverine World Wide portfolio.
■ With sourcing or manufacturing offices in the United

States, China, Hong Kong and India, the Company has
more than 2,900 dedicated employees around the globe
managing the sourcing and production of 36.2 million
pairs. The Company has owned-factories in the U.S. and
the Dominican Republic and utilizes contract factories
throughout Southeast Asia and India.
■ The Company’s owned manufacturing, located in

Arkansas, Michigan and the Dominican Republic, is
responsible for making some of the finest hand-sewn
footwear on the market and some of the most
technically advanced military footwear for the
U.S. Armed Forces.
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For well over one hundred and twenty years, hardworking Americans have left a deep imprint in the
heritage of the Wolverine® brand. A true category
leader, Wolverine® markets work, sport and rugged
casual footwear engineered to perform.

Cat® Footwear is a global brand with a heavy equipment
heritage which is reflected in work and lifestyle footwear for
men, women and kids. Distributed in more than 150
countries worldwide, Cat® Footwear is Equipment for Work
and Life.
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One of the largest casual footwear brands in the world,
Hush Puppies® consumers purchased nearly 18 million
pairs last year in more than 135 countries around the
globe. Stylish, comfortable and casual footwear continue
to define the Hush Puppies® product for men and women.

Already one of the premiere outdoor brands in apparel and
accessories, Patagonia® Footwear debuted at retail for Spring
2007. Just like the apparel, Patagonia® Footwear is constructed
with environmental sensitivity and utilizes processes and
materials that are both renewable and sustainable.

Wolverine World Wide
BRAND PORTFOLIO

On, in or around the water is where the Sebago®
brand has its roots. With some of the very best
performance footwear for boating enthusiasts and
finely-constructed handsewn dress casuals, Sebago®
is classic Americana at its best.

Harley-Davidson® Footwear embodies the spirit of the open road.
The Harley-Davidson® Footwear brand is expanding its global
presence by marketing both functional riding and fashion
footwear to men and women.

Merrell® is a leader in product design and innovation. With some
of the very best footwear engineered to perform on the trail or in
the city, Merrell® is extending into new footwear categories and
will be introducing apparel in Fall 2007.

Bates® is a leading supplier of footwear to the U.S. military
and has grown its private sector uniform footwear business by
27% over the last 3 years. Bates® continues to set the gold
standard in uniform footwear by leveraging technology and
product innovation.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
O V E RV I E W
Wolverine World Wide, Inc. (the “Company”) has a strategic vision – “To Excite Consumers Around the World with Innovative
Footwear and Apparel that Bring Style to Purpose.” To reach this vision, the Company continues to focus on the tenets of product
innovation, global expansion, brand development, service excellence and community service with the end goal of delivering
superior shareholder returns. There is also continued focus on the financial growth initiatives of achieving mid-to-upper single digit
average annual revenue growth, annual double-digit EPS increases and improved asset utilization and strong cash generation.
The following financial performance highlights of 2006 are a result of the execution of these strategies:
■ Seventh consecutive year of revenue growth with revenue increasing 7.6% to an all-time record level of $1.142 billion
■ Earnings per share achieved an all-time record level of $1.47 per share, an increase of 15.7% over the $1.27 reported in the prior
year, which marks the fourth consecutive year of double-digit growth
■ Continued focus on improved cash collections resulted in a 2.9% decrease in accounts receivable on a revenue increase of 7.6%
■ Inventory increased 14.2% primarily to support the growth of the global Merrell® Footwear business and the initial launch of
Patagonia® Footwear
■ Investment spending to support the development of the Merrell® Apparel and Patagonia® Footwear initiatives totaled
$6.8 million in 2006
■ Cash provided from operating activities for 2006 reached $108.3 million, marking the fourth consecutive year of cash generation
in excess of $100.0 million
■ The Company’s cash position remained strong at the end of 2006 with $124.7 million of cash on hand and debt outstanding of
$21.5 million
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CON ’ T )
The following is a discussion of the Company’s results of operations and liquidity and capital resources. This section should be read
in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes. All share and per share amounts in Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations have been adjusted for all periods to reflect the three-for-two stock
split distributed on February 1, 2005.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY – 2006 VERSUS 2005
2006

2005

$

%

$

$1,036.9
105.0

90.8%
9.2%

$ 964.5
96.5

$1,141.9

100.0%

$ 402.3
39.2
441.5

Change
%

$

%

(Millions of Dollars, Except Per Share Data)

Revenue
Branded footwear and licensing
Other business units
Total revenue
Gross margin
Branded footwear and licensing
Other business units
Total gross margin

Selling and administrative expenses
$ 318.2
Interest (income) expense – net
(.2)
Other expense – net
1.2
Earnings before income taxes and minority interest
122.3
Net earnings
83.6
Diluted earnings per share

$

90.9%
9.1%

$ 72.4
8.5

7.5%
8.8%

$1,061.0 100.0%

$ 80.9

7.6%

38.8%
37.4%

$ 369.6
35.6

38.3%
36.9%

$ 32.7
3.6

8.9%
10.1%

38.7%

$ 405.2

38.2%

$ 36.3

9.0%

27.9%
0.0%
0.1%
10.7%
7.3%

$ 291.9
1.9
.2
111.2
74.5

27.5%
0.2%
0.0%
10.5%
7.0%

$ 26.3
9.0%
(2.1) (110.6%)
1.0 698.7%
11.1
9.9%
9.1
12.3%

1.47

—

$

1.27

—

$ .20

15.7%

The Company has one reportable segment that is engaged in manufacturing, sourcing, marketing, licensing and distributing
branded footwear, apparel and accessories. Within the branded footwear and licensing segment, the Company has identified five
operating units, consisting of the Outdoor Group (comprised of the Merrell®, Sebago® and Patagonia® Footwear brands), the
Wolverine Footwear Group (comprised of the Wolverine®, HYTEST®, Bates® Footwear and Stanley® Footgear brands and certain
private label branded products), the Heritage Brands Group (comprised of Cat® Footwear and Harley-Davidson® Footwear),
The Hush Puppies Company, and Other Branded Footwear. The Company’s other business units consist of Wolverine Retail and
Wolverine Leathers (comprised of the Tannery and Procurement operations). The following is supplemental information on
total revenue:
TOTAL REVENUE
2006
$

2005
%

$

Change
%

$

%

(Millions of Dollars, Except Per Share Data)

Outdoor Group
Wolverine Footwear Group
Heritage Brands Group
The Hush Puppies Company
Other Branded Footwear

$ 393.3
275.8
192.3
169.9
5.6

34.4%
24.2%
16.8%
14.9%
0.5%

$ 337.8
285.5
174.2
163.4
3.6

31.8%
26.9%
16.4%
15.4%
0.4%

$55.5
(9.7)
18.1
6.5
2.0

16.5%
(3.4%)
10.4%
4.0%
57.8%

Total branded footwear and licensing revenue $1,036.9
Other business units
105.0

90.8%
9.2%

$ 964.5
96.5

90.9%
9.1%

$72.4
8.5

7.5%
8.8%

$1,061.0 100.0%

$80.9

7.6%

Total revenue

$1,141.9

100.0%
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (CON ’ T )
REVENUE
Revenue for 2006 increased $80.9 million over 2005. Increases in unit volume, changes in product mix and changes in selling price
for the branded footwear and licensing segment operations, as discussed below, contributed $66.8 million of the revenue increase.
Of the $66.8 million revenue increase, $19.2 million was attributed to increased shipments to an international distributor and the
conversion of this distributor from a royalty arrangement to a wholesale operation, which required recognition of sales and cost of
products sold. The impact of translating foreign denominated revenue to U.S. dollars improved revenue by $5.6 million. The other
business units contributed $8.5 million to the increase. Both domestic and international revenue increased, with international
revenue accounting for 33.4% of total revenue in 2006 compared to 30.2% in 2005.
The Outdoor Group reported an increase in revenue of $55.5 million over 2005, its ninth year of double-digit growth. The
Merrell® business realized a $54.8 million increase over the prior year as revenue increases were achieved across all geographic
locations. The brand also continued to experience growth with its network of international distributors. Strong sales in the
multi-sport, after-sport and sports fashion categories drove the majority of the increase. The Sebago® brand experienced a slight
decrease in revenue from the prior year. The decrease was primarily a result of lower than anticipated shipments in the U.S. The
growth and change in the international distributor arrangement mentioned above contributed $11.8 million to the increase for the
Outdoor Group. The first shipments of the Patagonia® product contributed approximately $.8 million to the increase.
The Wolverine Footwear Group recorded a $9.7 million decrease in revenue for 2006, as compared to 2005. The Wolverine®
boot business experienced an increase of $3.8 million during 2006 due to strong customer demand and reorder activity on the
Wolverine® MultiShox™ comfort technology product. A decrease of $6.0 million in the Bates® division was primarily the result
of a planned reduction of Department of Defense contract shipments. The Stanley® Footgear and private label businesses realized
$3.6 million and $3.9 million revenue decreases, respectively, due to reduced customer demand.
The Heritage Brands Group experienced an $18.1 million revenue increase in 2006 as compared to 2005. Cat® Footwear’s revenue
increased $16.1 million driven by strong revenue growth in the U.S., Canada, continental Europe and globally through the
international distribution network. Improved sell-through results have been experienced through the introduction of expanded
product campaigns including the Legendary RAW™ and iTechnology™ collections. Increased shipments to the Harley-Davidson®
dealer network resulted in a $2.0 million revenue increase for the Harley-Davidson® Footwear brand in 2006. The growth and
change in the international distributor arrangement mentioned above contributed $7.4 million to the increase for the Heritage
Brands Group.
The Hush Puppies Company’s revenue increased $6.5 million in 2006. The majority of the revenue growth was driven by increased
wholesale shipments in the Canadian and European markets as well as higher royalty income generated by international licensees.
Strong response to the Hush Puppies® product fueled a revenue increase of $4.6 million in Canada, an increase of $2.6 million in
Europe and a slight increase in the U.S. A $2.1 million revenue decrease in the slipper product was experienced as the Company
has decided to phase out of the slipper business. International licensing revenue increased $1.2 million in 2006 as global demand
for Hush Puppies® product continued to grow.
Within the Company’s other business units, Wolverine Retail reported a $4.5 million increase in revenue as a result of a
mid-single digit same-store revenue increase as well as the net addition of six stores as compared to 2005. The Wolverine Leathers
operation reported a $4.0 million increase primarily due to increased demand for the Company’s proprietary sueded products.
The Company ended 2006 with an increase in order backlog of over 10% above 2005 year-end levels. This backlog principally
reflects demand for the first half of 2007.
GROSS MARGIN
The gross margin level for 2006 of 38.7% was a 50 basis point increase over the prior year. A change in business mix contributed
an increase of 40 basis points, favorable product costs increased margin by 30 basis points and benefits from favorable foreign
exchange contract rates associated with the Company’s foreign entity inventory purchases added 10 basis points. These
improvements were partially offset by a reduction of 30 basis points due to increased product costs on the European operations
related to the levying of dumping duties on products sourced from China and Vietnam.
S E L L I N G A N D A D M I N I S T R AT I V E E X P E N S E S
Selling and administrative expenses increased $26.3 million during 2006 to $318.2 million. The Company invested approximately
$6.1 million in product development and selling and administrative costs on the Merrell® Apparel and Patagonia® Footwear
initiatives in 2006. Incremental stock-based compensation costs increased the selling and administrative expenses by $2.7 million
as a result of the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123(R). The remaining increases related
primarily to selling and distribution costs that vary with the increase in revenue.
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I N T E R E S T, O T H E R & TA X E S
The decrease in net interest expense reflected increased interest income from invested cash balances, as well as lower average
outstanding amounts on senior notes and minimal borrowing under the Company’s revolving credit facility.
The increase in other expense primarily related to the change in realized gains or losses on foreign denominated assets
and liabilities.
The Company’s effective income tax rate for 2006 was 31.6%, compared to 33.1% in 2005. In the fourth quarter of 2006, the
Company recognized a one-time net income tax benefit of $1.5 million resulting from the closure of prior year income tax audits.
The 2005 income tax rate reflected additional income tax expense of $1.4 million due to the Company’s repatriation of earnings
of foreign subsidiaries of $41.5 million as provided under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004. The annualized effective tax
rate for fiscal 2007 is estimated to range from 33.0% to 33.5%.
NET EARNINGS
As a result of the revenue, gross margin and expense changes discussed above, the Company achieved net earnings of $83.6 million
compared to $74.5 million in 2005, an increase of $9.1 million.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY – 2005 VERSUS 2004
2005
$

2004
%

$

$ 964.5
96.5

90.9%
9.1%

$903.6
88.3

$1,061.0

100.0%

Gross margin
Branded footwear and licensing
Other business units

$ 369.6
35.6

Total gross margin

Change
%

$

%

(Millions of Dollars, Except Per Share Data)

Revenue
Branded footwear and licensing
Other business units

91.1%
8.9%

$60.9
8.2

6.7%
9.2%

$991.9 100.0%

$69.1

7.0%

38.3%
36.9%

$343.1
31.0

38.0%
35.2%

$26.5
4.6

7.7%
14.7%

$ 405.2

38.2%

$374.1

37.7%

$31.1

8.3%

Selling and administrative expenses
$ 291.9
Interest expense – net
1.9
Other (income) expense – net
.2
Earnings before income taxes and minority interest
111.2
Net earnings
74.5

27.5%
0.2%
0.0%
10.5%
7.0%

$274.1 27.6%
3.2
0.3%
(.3)
0.0%
97.1
9.8%
65.9
6.6%

$17.8
6.5%
(1.3) (41.1%)
.5 (149.2%)
14.2
14.6%
8.6
12.9%

$ 1.09

$ .18

Total revenue

Diluted earnings per share

$

1.27

—

—

16.5%

The following is supplemental information on total revenue:
TOTAL REVENUE
2005
$

2004

Change

%

$

%

$

%

$ 337.8
285.5
174.2
163.4
3.6

31.8%
26.9%
16.4%
15.4%
0.4%

$286.6
293.8
164.4
152.8
6.0

28.9%
29.6%
16.6%
15.4%
0.6%

$51.2
(8.3)
9.8
10.6
(2.4)

17.8%
(2.8%)
5.9%
7.0%
(40.9%)

Total branded footwear and licensing revenue $ 964.5
Other business units
96.5

90.9%
9.1%

$903.6
88.3

91.1%
8.9%

$60.9
8.2

6.7%
9.2%

$991.9 100.0%

$69.1

7.0%

(Millions of Dollars)

Outdoor Group
Wolverine Footwear Group
Heritage Brands Group
The Hush Puppies Company
Other Branded Footwear

Total revenue

$1,061.0

100.0%
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REVENUE
Revenue for 2005 increased $69.1 million over 2004. The addition of the Cat® and Wolverine® wholesale operations in Canada, as
well as the transition of the Merrell® businesses in Sweden and Finland and the Sebago® operations in the U.K. and Germany from
distributor-based businesses to Company-owned wholesale businesses represented $20.6 million of the revenue increase. Increases
in unit volume, changes in product mix and changes in selling price for the branded footwear and licensing segment operations, as
discussed below, contributed $45.0 million of the revenue increase. The impact of translating foreign denominated revenue to U.S.
dollars improved revenue by $3.5 million. Both domestic and international revenue increased with international revenue accounting
for 30.2% of total revenue in 2005 compared to 27.5% in 2004.
The Outdoor Group reported a 17.8% increase in revenue over 2004, its eighth year of double-digit growth. The Merrell® business
achieved double-digit growth in the U.S., Canada and Europe. The brand also experienced growth with its network of international
distributors. Strong sales in the multi-sport, after-sport and sports fashion categories drove the increase. The Sebago® brand
experienced a 17.6% increase in revenue over the prior year. The increase was driven by sales in the international markets where
distribution arrangements have been converted to Company-owned wholesale operations.
The Wolverine Footwear Group experienced a 2.8% decline in revenue for 2005. The Wolverine® and Stanley® Footgear boot
businesses experienced an increase of $5.7 million during 2005 as new product and marketing initiatives drove strong retail
performance. The conversion of a Canadian distributorship to a Company-owned wholesale operation accounted for
approximately half of the increase. The decrease of $12.2 million in the Bates® division was primarily the result of a planned
reduction in combat boot shipments. A reduction in demand for private label product contributed $1.8 million to the decrease
in revenue for 2005.
The Heritage Brands Group experienced a 5.9% revenue increase in 2005. The Cat® Footwear increase was driven by revenue
growth in Europe and with the Company’s global trading partners. Positive consumer response to new product initiatives such
as iTechnology™ and expanded retail distribution helped to drive the increase. The conversion of the business in Canada from
a distributorship to a Company-owned wholesale operation also contributed to the increase. Revenue for the Harley-Davidson®
Footwear brand remained even with the prior year.
The Hush Puppies Company’s revenue increased 7.0% in 2005. The revenue growth was broad-based as increases were achieved
in the U.S., Canada and Europe. Strong response to the new contemporary-styled Hush Puppies® product fueled growth both in
the Company-owned wholesale operations and with the Company’s global licensing partners.
Within the Company’s other business units, Wolverine Retail reported an upper-single-digit same-store sales increase as consumers
responded favorably to the Company’s products. Wolverine Leathers recorded a revenue increase driven by greater demand for
sueded leather footwear.
The Company ended 2005 with an order backlog approximately 11% above 2004 year-end levels.
GROSS MARGIN
The gross margin level for 2005 of 38.2% was a 50 basis point improvement over the prior year. Benefits from favorable
foreign exchange contract rates associated with the Company’s foreign entity inventory purchases resulted in lower product
costs which added 60 basis points to the margin. An increase in shipments of higher margin products improved margin by
40 basis points. Unfavorable manufacturing variances and increased product costs totaling 50 basis points partially offset
the gross margin improvement.
S E L L I N G A N D A D M I N I S T R AT I V E E X P E N S E S
Selling and administrative expenses increased $17.8 million during 2005 to $291.9 million. The addition of the Cat® and
Wolverine® operations in Canada, as well as the transition of the Merrell® businesses in Sweden and Finland and the Sebago®
operations in the U.K. and Germany from distributor-based businesses to Company-owned wholesale businesses, accounted
for $7.3 million of the increase. The Company continued to invest in marketing and new business development which accounted
for $2.7 million of the increase. The remaining increases related primarily to selling and distribution costs that vary with the
increase in revenue.
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I N T E R E S T, O T H E R & TA X E S
The decrease in net interest expense reflected lower average outstanding amounts on senior notes and minimal borrowing under
the Company’s revolving credit facility, as well as increased interest income from invested cash balances.
The decrease in other income primarily related to the change in realized gains or losses on foreign denominated assets
and liabilities.
The Company’s effective income tax rate for 2005 was 33.1% compared to 31.8% in 2004. During the fourth quarter of 2005,
the Company elected to repatriate earnings of foreign subsidiaries as provided under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004.
The Company repatriated $41.5 million of eligible earnings and, as a result, recorded a related tax expense of $1.4 million.
NET EARNINGS
As a result of the revenue, gross margin and expense changes discussed above, the Company achieved net earnings of $74.5 million
compared to $65.9 million in 2004, an increase of $8.6 million.
L I Q U I D I T Y A N D C A P I TA L R E S O U R C E S
Change
December 30, 2006

December 31, 2005

$

%

(Millions of Dollars)

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries and wages
Other accrued liabilities
Debt
Cash provided by operating activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Depreciation and amortization

$124.7
152.6
184.3
47.4
19.3
43.5
21.5

$ 85.3
157.1
161.3
41.1
17.5
34.4
32.4

$39.4
(4.5)
23.0
6.3
1.8
9.1
(10.9)

46.2%
(2.9%)
14.2%
15.4%
10.0%
26.3%
(33.8%)

108.3
17.1
20.6

117.3
19.2
20.0

(9.0)
(2.1)
.6

(7.7%)
(10.9%)
2.9%

The Company continued to strengthen its balance sheet in 2006. Cash of $108.3 million was generated from operating activities
in 2006. Accounts receivable decreased 2.9% on a 7.6% revenue gain, while reducing the accounts receivable days’ sales
outstanding from the prior year by 2.0%. Inventory levels were up 14.2% at year end and inventory turns increased by
5.9% in comparison to the prior year.
The increase in accounts payable was attributed to the timing of inventory purchases from contract suppliers. The increase in other
accrued liabilities was primarily attributable to adjustments made for foreign currency forward exchange contracts, an increase in
employee benefit accruals, an increase in profit-sharing accruals, timing of royalty payments and an increase in taxes payable.
The majority of capital expenditures were for information system enhancements, consumer-direct initiatives, distribution equipment
and building improvements. The Company leases machinery, equipment and certain warehouse, office and retail store space under
operating lease agreements that expire at various dates through 2023.
The Company has a long-term revolving credit agreement that expires in July 2010 and allows for borrowings up to
$150.0 million. The revolving credit facility is used to support working capital requirements. No amounts were outstanding
under the revolving credit facility at December 30, 2006 or December 31, 2005. The Company was in compliance with all
debt covenant requirements at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005. Proceeds from the existing credit facility along
with cash flows from operations are expected to be sufficient to meet capital needs in the foreseeable future. Any excess cash
flows from operating activities are expected to be used to purchase property, plant and equipment, pay down existing debt,
fund internal and external growth initiatives, pay dividends or repurchase the Company’s common stock.
The decrease in debt was the result of annual principal payments on the Company’s senior notes. The Company had commercial
letter-of-credit facilities outstanding of $2.8 million and $2.9 million at the end of 2006 and 2005, respectively. The total debt to
total capital ratio for the Company was 4.1% in 2006 and 6.6% in 2005.
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The Company’s pension benefit results are based upon actuarial valuations. Inherent in these valuations are key assumptions,
including discount rates and expected returns on plan assets. The Company is required to consider market conditions, including
changes in interest rates, in selecting these assumptions. Pre-tax expense resulting from the Company’s qualified defined benefit
pension plans increased $.8 million for 2006 when compared to 2005 primarily due to the change for purposes of estimating
participant mortality. For 2006, the Company adopted the provision of SFAS No. 158 requiring the recognition of the funded
status of pension plans on its balance sheet. As a result, the Company recorded a net reduction of $13.1 million within the
accumulated other comprehensive income component of stockholders’ equity, a reduction to net assets of $12.3 million and an
increase to net liabilities of $1.6 million. This adjustment had no impact on the net earnings or cash flows of the Company. The
Company estimates that pre-tax expense related to qualified defined benefit pension plans will decrease in 2007 as compared to
2006 by $4.1 million primarily as a result of the reduction in the amortization of prior market value losses and a discount rate
increase. This estimate is based on the expected early adoption of the measurement date provision of SFAS No. 158 in 2007 which
requires the use of the Company’s year end as its pension plan measurement date beginning for the 2008 expense determination.
The Company previously used September 30 as its measurement date.
Applying the provisions of SFAS No. 87 and SFAS No. 132, the Company’s qualified defined benefit pension plans (the “Plans”)
were overfunded by $9.6 million in 2006 and $11.1 million in 2005. Under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974,
the Plans had no minimum funding requirements for 2006 and 2005. Discretionary cash contributions were made to the Plans
totaling $3.0 million in 2006 and $3.1 million in 2005 to provide long-term stability to the Plans. The Company expects to
contribute approximately $3.0 million to its qualified defined benefit pension plans and approximately $.9 million to the
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP) in 2007.
In the fourth quarter and full year 2006 results, the Company recognized a one-time net income tax benefit of $1.5 million
resulting from the closure of prior year income tax audits. In 2005, the Company elected to repatriate earnings of foreign
subsidiaries as provided under the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Act”), which provided for a tax deduction of
85% of certain foreign earnings that were repatriated in 2005. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company repatriated
foreign earnings of $41.5 million and, as a result, recorded a related tax expense of $1.4 million. No provision has been made for
U.S. federal and state income taxes or foreign taxes that may result from future remittances of the undistributed earnings of foreign
subsidiaries of $125.3 million at December 30, 2006 ($89.2 million at December 31, 2005) as the Company expects such earnings
will remain invested overseas indefinitely.
The Company’s Board of Directors has approved common stock repurchase programs each authorizing the repurchase of
3.0 million shares of common stock over a 24-month period. The primary purpose of these stock repurchase programs is to
increase shareholder value. The Company intends to continue repurchasing shares of its common stock in open market or privately
negotiated transactions, from time-to-time, depending upon market conditions and other factors.
2006
Authorization
effective date

Shares
repurchased

December 13, 2005
October 5, 2004

1,808,118
18,882

2005
Market price
of shares
repurchased

$42,039,000
407,000

Shares
repurchased
—
2,942,400

Market price
of shares
repurchased
$
—
63,682,000

Cumulative
Shares
repurchased
1,808,118
3,000,000

Market price
of shares
repurchased
$42,039,000
64,862,000

The Company declared dividends of $16.5 million in 2006, or $.30 per share, which was a 15.4% increase on a per share basis
over the $14.5 million, or $.26 per share, declared in 2005. On February 8, 2007, the Company declared a quarterly cash dividend
of $.09 per share of common stock, an increase of 20.0% as compared to the same period of 2006. The quarterly dividend is
payable on May 1, 2007, to shareholders of record on April 2, 2007.
On June 6, 2005, the Company announced an exclusive global footwear licensing agreement for Patagonia® Footwear, with the
initial product introduction debuting Spring 2007.
During the second quarter of 2005, the Company purchased the remaining 5% ownership from the minority stockholder of
Wolverine Europe Limited for a purchase price of $2.3 million, making it a wholly-owned subsidiary. The transaction eliminated
the minority interest of $.6 million and resulted in goodwill of $1.8 million.
On January 3, 2005, the Company expanded its owned Cat® and Wolverine® Footwear operations in Canada. This expansion
allowed the Company to directly wholesale all of its major brands in Canada. Assets consisting primarily of inventory, fixed assets
and amortizable intangible assets totaling $2.1 million and assumed liabilities of $.8 million were acquired from a former
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Wolverine® and Cat® Footwear distributor for $2.3 million in cash and resulted in goodwill and intangible assets of approximately
$1.0 million. Consolidated pro forma revenue and net earnings, assuming the transaction occurred at the beginning of 2005,
were not materially different from reported amounts. Pursuant to SFAS No. 142, goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles will
not be amortized, but will be evaluated for impairment annually. Goodwill was assigned to the Company’s branded footwear
and licensing segment. The amortizable intangible assets have a weighted average useful life of approximately ten years.
On January 3, 2005, the Company expanded its owned Merrell® operations into Sweden and Finland and its Sebago® operations
into the U.K. and Germany. Assets consisting primarily of inventory totaling approximately $.5 million were acquired from former
distributors for cash.
These acquisitions are discussed further in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.
In early October 2006, the European Commission announced definitive anti-dumping duties at rates of 16.5% and 10.0% on
imports from China and Vietnam, respectively. These definitive measures became effective October 7, 2006 and will remain in
effect until October 6, 2008. The imposition of these anti-dumping measures could have a material impact on the Company’s
business, results of operations and financial condition.
N E W A C C O U N T I N G S TA N D A R D S
In July 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes – An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (FIN 48), which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in tax
positions. This Interpretation requires that the Company recognize in its financial statements the impact of a tax position, if that
position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on the technical merits of the position. This Interpretation
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2006, with the cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle
recorded as an adjustment to opening retained earnings. The Company is in process of calculating the effects and expects that
the adoption of FIN 48 will not have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (SFAS No. 157). This new standard establishes a
framework for measuring the fair value of assets and liabilities. This framework is intended to provide increased consistency in
how fair value determinations are made under various existing accounting standards which permit, or in some cases require,
estimates of fair market value. SFAS No. 157 also expands financial statement disclosure requirements about a company’s use of
fair value measurements, including the effect of such measures on earnings. The Company is required to adopt this new accounting
guidance at the beginning of the fiscal year ending January 3, 2009. While the Company is currently evaluating the provisions of
SFAS No. 157, the adoption is not expected to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans (SFAS No. 158). SFAS No. 158 amends SFAS No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for Pensions, SFAS No. 88, Employers’
Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits, SFAS No. 106,
Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions and SFAS No. 132, Employers’ Disclosures about
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits. The amendments retain most of the existing measurement and disclosure guidance and
will not change the amounts recognized in the Company’s statements of operations. SFAS No. 158 requires companies to recognize
a net asset or liability with an offset to equity, by which the defined benefit postretirement obligation is over- or under-funded.
This aspect of SFAS No. 158 became effective for the Company’s current fiscal year end December 30, 2006 and has been included
in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. SFAS No. 158 did not have an effect on the Company’s consolidated
financial condition at December 31, 2005 or January 1, 2005. SFAS No. 158 also requires that employers measure plan assets and
obligations as of the date of their year-end financial statements beginning with the Company’s fiscal year ending January 3, 2009.
The Company expects to early adopt this requirement of SFAS No. 158 in the fiscal year ending December 29, 2007. See Note 6
for further discussion of the effect of adopting SFAS No. 158 on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States, requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates these
estimates. Estimates are based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Historically, actual results have not been materially different from
the Company’s estimates. However, actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
The Company has identified the following critical accounting policies used in determining estimates and assumptions in the
amounts reported. Management believes that an understanding of these policies is important to an overall understanding of
the consolidated financial statements.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is recognized on the sale of products manufactured or sourced by the Company when the related goods have been
shipped, legal title has passed to the customer and collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenue generated through programs
with licensees and distributors involving products bearing the Company’s trademarks is recognized as earned according to
stated contractual terms upon either the purchase or shipment of branded products by licensees and distributors.
The Company records provisions against gross revenue for estimated stock returns and cash discounts in the period when the
related revenue is recorded. These estimates are based on factors that include, but are not limited to, historical stock returns,
historical discounts taken and analysis of credit memorandum activity. The actual amount of customer returns or allowances,
which is uncertain, may differ from the Company’s estimates. The Company would record either an increase or decrease to
net sales in the period in which it determined an adjustment to be appropriate.
A C C O U N T S R E C E I VA B L E
The Company maintains an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable for estimated losses resulting from its customers’
inability to make required payments. Company management evaluates the allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable based
on a review of current customer status and historical collection experience. Historically, losses have been within the Company’s
expectations. Adjustments to these estimates may be required if the financial condition of the Company’s customers were to change.
If the Company were to determine that increases or decreases to the allowance for uncollectible accounts were appropriate, the
Company would record either an increase or decrease to general and administrative expenses in the period the Company made
such a determination. At December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, management believes that it has provided sufficient reserves
to address future collection uncertainties.
I N V E N T O RY
The Company values its inventory at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method for all
domestic raw materials and work-in-process inventories, and certain domestic finished goods inventories. Cost is determined using
methods approximating cost under the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method for all raw materials, work-in-process and finished good
inventories in foreign countries. The FIFO method is also used for all finished goods inventories of the Company’s retail business,
due to the unique nature of that operation, and for certain domestic finished goods inventories that were acquired as part of asset
purchase transactions. Once elected, the Company has applied these inventory cost valuation methods consistently from year to
year. The Company reduces the value of its inventories to the lower of cost or market for excess or obsolete inventories based upon
assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If the Company were to determine that the estimated market value of
its inventory is less than the carrying value of such inventory, the Company would provide a reserve for such difference as a
charge to cost of sales. If actual market conditions are different from those projected, adjustments to those inventory reserves may
be required. The adjustments would increase or decrease the Company’s cost of sales and net income in the period in which they
were realized or recorded. Inventory quantities are verified at various times throughout the year by performing annual physical
inventory observations and perpetual inventory cycle count procedures. If the Company determines that adjustments to the
inventory quantities are appropriate, an increase or decrease to the Company’s cost of sales and inventory would be recorded in
the period in which such determination was made. At December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, management believes that it
has provided sufficient reserves for excess or obsolete inventories.
G O O D W I L L A N D O T H E R N O N - A M O R T I Z A B L E I N TA N G I B L E S
Goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized, but are subject to impairment tests at least
annually. The first step of the goodwill impairment test requires that the fair value of the applicable reporting unit be compared
with its recorded value. The Company establishes fair value by calculating the present value of the expected future cash flows of
the reporting unit. The Company uses assumptions about expected future operating performance in determining estimates of those
cash flows, which may differ from actual cash flows. If the recorded values of these assets are not recoverable, based on this
discounted cash flow analysis, management performs the next step which compares the fair value of the reporting unit calculated
in step one to the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets of the reporting unit, which results in an implied fair value of
goodwill. Goodwill is reduced by any shortfall of implied goodwill to its carrying value. Impairment tests for other non-amortizable
intangibles require the determination of the fair value of the intangible asset. The carrying value is reduced by any excess over fair
value. The Company reviewed the carrying amounts of goodwill and other non-amortizable intangible assets and there was no
impairment indicated for the years ended December 30, 2006 or December 31, 2005.
I N C O M E TA X E S
The Company operates in multiple tax jurisdictions both inside and outside the United States. Accordingly, management must
determine the appropriate allocation of income in accordance with local law for each of these jurisdictions. The Company believes
its tax accruals are adequate to cover exposures related to changes in income allocation between tax jurisdictions. The carrying
value of the Company’s deferred tax assets assumes that the Company will be able to generate sufficient taxable income in future
years to utilize these deferred tax assets. If these assumptions change, the Company may be required to record valuation allowances
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against its gross deferred tax assets in future years, which would result in additional income tax expense in the Company’s
consolidated statements of operations. Management evaluates the potential for realizing gross deferred tax assets and assesses
the need for valuation allowances on a quarterly basis. The Company did not record a valuation allowance in 2006 or 2005.
On a periodic basis, the Company estimates what the effective tax rate will be for the full fiscal year and records a quarterly income
tax provision in accordance with the anticipated annual rate. As the fiscal year progresses, that estimate is refined based upon
actual events and earnings by tax jurisdictions during the year. This continual estimation process periodically results in a change
to%the expected effective tax rate for the fiscal year. When this occurs, the Company adjusts the income tax provision during the
quarter in which the change in estimate occurs so that the year-to-date provision equals the expected annual rate.
S T O C K - B A S E D C O M P E N S AT I O N
The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment. The Company utilizes the Black-Scholes model, which requires the input of subjective
assumptions. These assumptions include estimating (a) the length of time employees will retain their vested stock options
before exercising them (“expected term”), (b) the volatility of the Company’s common stock price over the expected term and
(c) the number of options that will ultimately not complete their vesting requirements (“forfeitures”). Changes in the subjective
assumptions can materially affect the estimate of fair value of stock-based compensation and, consequently, the related amounts
recognized on the consolidated condensed statements of operations.
Q U A N T I TAT I V E A N D Q U A L I TAT I V E D I S C L O S U R E S A B O U T M A R K E T R I S K
The Company faces market risk to the extent that changes in foreign currency exchange rates affect the Company’s foreign assets,
liabilities and inventory purchase commitments and to the extent that its long-term debt requirements are affected by changes in
interest rates. The Company manages these risks by attempting to denominate contractual and other foreign arrangements in
U.S. dollars and by maintaining a significant percentage of its debt on a fixed-rate basis. The Company does not believe that there
has been a material change in the nature of the Company’s primary market risk exposures, including the categories of market risk
to which the Company is exposed and the particular markets that present the primary risk of loss to the Company. As of the date
of this Annual Report, the Company does not know of or expect there to be any material change in the general nature of its
primary market risk exposure in the near term.
Under the provisions of SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended by
SFAS Nos. 137 and 138, the Company is required to recognize all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. Derivatives
that are not hedges must be adjusted to fair value through earnings. If a derivative is a hedge, depending on the nature of the
hedge, changes in the fair value of derivatives are either offset against the change in fair value of the hedged assets, liabilities
or firm commitments through earnings or recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income until the hedged item is
recognized in earnings.
The Company conducts wholesale operations outside of the United States in Europe and Canada where the functional currencies
are primarily the British pound, euro, and Canadian dollar. The Company utilizes foreign currency forward exchange contracts
to manage the volatility associated with inventory purchases made by non-U.S. wholesale operations in foreign currencies in the
normal course of business. At December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, the Company had outstanding forward currency
exchange contracts to purchase $56.4 million and $61.4 million, respectively, of various currencies (principally U.S. dollars)
with maturities ranging up to 252 days.
The Company also has production facilities in the Dominican Republic where financial statements reflect U.S. dollars as the
functional currency; however, operating costs are paid in the local currency. Royalty revenue generated by the Company from
third-party foreign licensees is calculated in the licensees’ local currencies, but paid in U.S. dollars. Accordingly, the Company
could be subject to related foreign currency remeasurement gains and losses in 2007 and beyond.
Assets and liabilities outside the United States are primarily located in the United Kingdom, Canada and The Netherlands.
The Company’s investments in foreign subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are generally considered
long-term. Accordingly, the Company does not hedge these net investments. For the year ended December 30, 2006, the
strengthening of foreign currencies increased the value of these investments in net assets by $9.5 million. For the year ended
December 31, 2005, the strengthening of the U.S. dollar decreased the value of these investments in net assets by $11.5 million.
These changes resulted in cumulative foreign currency translation adjustments at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005 of
$21.8 million and $12.2 million, respectively, that are deferred and recorded as a component of accumulated other comprehensive
income in stockholders’ equity.
Because the Company markets, sells and licenses its products throughout the world, it could be affected by weak economic
conditions in foreign markets that could reduce demand for its products.
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The Company is exposed to changes in interest rates primarily as a result of its long-term debt requirements. The Company’s
interest rate risk management objectives are to limit the effect of interest rate changes on earnings and cash flows and to effectively
manage overall borrowing costs. To achieve its objectives, the Company maintains substantially all fixed-rate debt to take
advantage of lower relative interest rates currently available and finances seasonal working capital needs with variable-rate debt.
The Company has not historically utilized interest rate swaps or similar hedging arrangements to fix interest rates; however, in
1998 the Company entered into an interest rate lock agreement to fix the interest rate prior to the issuance of 6.5% senior notes in
the amount of $75 million. The contract was settled in 1998 and resulted in a prepayment of interest of $2.2 million that is being
amortized over the term of the senior notes. The remaining unamortized balance at December 30, 2006 was $.5 million. The
amortization of the prepayment creates an effective interest rate of 6.78% on the senior notes.
The Company does not enter into contracts for speculative or trading purposes, nor is it a party to any leveraged
derivative instruments.
The following table lists required principal payments and related interest rates for the Company’s short- and long-term debt
by fiscal year of maturity.
2006
2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

—
—

—
—

—
—

Thereafter

Total

2005
Fair
Value

Fair
Value

Total

(Millions of Dollars, Except Percentages)

Denominated in U.S. Dollars:
Fixed rate
Average interest rate

$10.7 $10.7
6.5% 6.5%

—
—

$21.4
$21.7
6.5%

$32.4
$33.0
6.5%
—

The Company has the following payments under contractual obligations due by period:
Total

Less than
1 year

1-3 years

3-5 years

More than
5 years

(Thousands of Dollars)

Long-term debt
Estimated interest on long-term debt
Capital leases
Operating leases
Purchase obligations(1)
Deferred compensation
Pension(2)
SERP
Dividends declared
Minimum royalties
Minimum advertising

$ 21,429
1,393
42
81,059
218,000
1,747
3,000
16,048
9,121
6,858
6,605

$ 10,715
697
15
13,020
218,000
314
3,000
938
9,121
1,152
1,579

$10,714
696
20
22,435
—
544
—
2,702
—
2,390
3,301

$

—
—
7
15,275
—
369
—
3,058
—
3,316
1,725

$

—
—
—
30,329
—
520
—
9,350
—
—
—

Total

$365,302

$258,551

$42,802

$23,750

$40,199

(1)

Purchase obligations primarily relate to inventory and capital expenditure commitments.

(2)

Pension obligations reflect only planned pension funding as there are currently no required funding obligations under government regulation.
Funding amounts are calculated on an annual basis and no required or planned funding beyond one year has been determined.

The Company had $153.5 million of additional borrowing capacity available under all of its existing credit facilities at
December 30, 2006. The Company’s additional borrowing capacity is summarized as follows:
Expiration of availability
Total commitments
Less than
1 year or
available
1 year
greater
(Millions of Dollars)

Revolving credit
Standby letters of credit
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$150.0
3.5

$—
3.5

$150.0
—
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F O RWA R D - L O O K I N G S TAT E M E N T S
The Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (pages 14-25), the preamble (inside
front cover), the Our Brand Portfolio section (pages 12-13), the Operating Strategies and Growth Initiatives section (pages 4-11),
the Letter to the Shareholders from the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and the President and Chief Operating Officer
(pages 2-3), and other sections of this Annual Report contain forward-looking statements that are based on management’s beliefs,
assumptions, current expectations, estimates and projections about the footwear business, worldwide economics and the Company
itself. Statements, including without limitation, those related to: future revenue, earnings, margins, growth, cash flows, operating
measurements, tax rates and tax benefits; expected economic returns; projected 2007 operating results and dividend rates; future
share repurchase activity; future strength of the Company; future brand positioning; achievement of the Company vision; future
pension costs; future marketing investments; the introduction of new lines or categories of products, including Merrell® Apparel and
Patagonia® Footwear; future growth or success in specific countries, categories or market sectors; liquidity; capital resources and
market risk are forward-looking statements. In addition, words such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,”
“forecasts,” “intends,” “is likely,” “plans,” “predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “will,” variations of such words and similar
expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and
involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions (“Risk Factors”) that are difficult to predict with regard to timing, extent,
likelihood and degree of occurrence. Therefore, actual results and outcomes may materially differ from what may be expressed or
forecasted in such forward-looking statements.
Risk Factors include, but are not limited to, uncertainties relating to changes in demand for the Company’s products; changes in
consumer preferences or spending patterns; the cost and availability of inventories, services, labor and equipment furnished to the
Company; the cost and availability of contract manufacturers; the cost and availability of raw materials, including leather and
petroleum based materials; changes in planned consumer demand or at-once orders; customer order cancellations; the impact of
competition and pricing by the Company’s competitors; changes in government and regulatory policies; foreign currency fluctuation
in valuations compared to the U.S. dollar; changes in monetary controls and valuations of the Chinese yuan renminbi and the
relative value to the U.S. dollar; changes in duty structures in countries of import and export; the effect of anti-dumping measures
in Europe that have been implemented by the European Commission with respect to leather footwear imported into the European
Union from China and Vietnam at additional duty rates of 16.5% and 10.0% respectively, from October 7, 2006 through
October 6, 2008, for certain leather footwear; changes in interest rates, tax laws, duties, tariffs, quotas or applicable assessments;
technological developments; changes in local, domestic or international economic and market conditions; the size and growth of
footwear markets; service interruptions at shipping and receiving ports; changes in the amount or severity of inclement weather;
changes due to the growth of Internet commerce; popularity of particular designs and categories of footwear; the ability of the
Company to manage and forecast its growth and inventories; the ability to secure and protect trademarks, patents and other
intellectual property; integration of operations of newly acquired businesses; changes in business strategy or development plans; the
Company’s ability to adapt and compete in global apparel and accessory markets; customer acceptance of the Patagonia® Footwear
products; the ability to attract and retain qualified personnel; the ability to retain rights to brands licensed by the Company; loss of
significant customers; relationships with international distributors and licensees; the Company’s ability to meet at-once orders; the
exercise of future purchase options by the U.S. Department of Defense on previously awarded contracts; the risk of doing business
in developing countries and economically volatile areas; retail buying patterns; consolidation in the retail sector; and the
acceptability of U.S. brands in international markets. Additionally, concerns regarding acts of terrorism, the war in Iraq and
subsequent events have created significant global economic and political uncertainties that may have material and adverse effects
on consumer demand, foreign sourcing of footwear, shipping and transportation, product imports and exports and the sale of
products in foreign markets. Additional Risk Factors that should be considered by investors are contained in the Company’s
Form 10-K filed in February of 2007. These matters are representative of the Risk Factors that could cause a difference between
an ultimate actual outcome and a forward-looking statement. Historical operating results are not necessarily indicative of the
results that may be expected in the future. The Risk Factors included here are not exhaustive. Other Risk Factors exist, and
new Risk Factors emerge from time-to-time, that may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any
forward-looking statements. Given these risks and uncertainties, investors should not place undue reliance on forward-looking
statements as a prediction of actual results. Furthermore, the Company undertakes no obligation to update, amend or clarify
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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Five-Year Operating and Financial Summary
2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data and Percentages)

SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS (1)
Revenue
Cost of products sold
Selling and administrative expenses
Interest (income) expense – net
Income taxes
Net earnings
Net earnings as a percent of revenue
Cash dividends declared
Per share of common stock: (2)
Basic net earnings(3)
Diluted net earnings(3)
Cash dividends declared
Stockholders’ equity(4)
Shares used for computing earnings
per share:(1)(2)(3)
Basic
Diluted

$1,141,887
700,349
318,243
(202)
38,645
83,647
$
$

7.3%
16,504
1.52
1.47
.30
9.10

$1,060,999
655,800
291,891
1,911
36,780
74,467
$
$

54,853
56,931

7.0%
14,476
1.33
1.27
.26
8.24

$991,909
617,774
274,125
3,245
30,879
65,938

$888,926
562,338
246,652
5,474
23,262
51,716

6.6%
$ 11,135

$

$

$

1.15
1.09
.19
6.80

5.8%
8,588
.88
.85
.15
6.48

$827,106
532,878
217,154
6,466
23,599
47,912
$
$

5.8%
7,192
.79
.77
.12
5.61

56,144
58,675

57,398
60,474

58,764
61,081

60,368
62,333

85,258
157,119
161,347
420,748
93,202
626,580
104,037
32,411
462,321
316,711

$ 72,172
151,174
182,924
430,855
94,930
639,571
110,251
43,904
458,291
320,604

$ 55,356
146,879
164,904
386,636
96,007
593,762
85,766
59,923
430,094
300,870

$ 27,078
156,285
168,998
364,643
97,274
531,994
80,177
72,915
369,097
284,466

FINANCIAL POSITION AT YEAR END
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable – net
Inventories
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment – net
Total assets
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Stockholders’ equity
Working capital

$ 124,663
152,608
184,259
485,313
87,952
671,092
120,915
21,471
504,559
364,398

$

Notes to Five-Year Operating and Financial Summary
(1)

This summary should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto.

(2)

On December 15, 2004, the Company announced a three-for-two stock split in the form of a stock dividend on shares of common stock
outstanding at January 3, 2005 that was distributed to stockholders on February 1, 2005. All share and per share data has been retroactively
adjusted for the increased shares resulting from this stock split. Treasury shares were excluded from the stock split.

(3)

Basic earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the year after adjustment
for nonvested restricted common stock. Diluted earnings per share assume the exercise of dilutive stock options and the vesting of all
outstanding restricted stock.

(4)

Stockholders’ equity per share is based on shares outstanding, excluding treasury shares, at year end.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of Fiscal Year End
2006

2005

(Thousands of Dollars)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowances (2006 – $13,320; 2005 – $8,729)
Inventories:
Finished products
Raw materials and work-in-process

$124,663
152,608

$ 85,258
157,119

168,603
15,656
184,259

140,729
20,618
161,347

8,346
15,437
485,313

5,411
11,613
420,748

882
71,687
146,967
58,187
277,723

882
68,235
140,909
54,605
264,631

189,771
87,952

171,429
93,202

Total assets

38,776
8,506
31,739
10,233
3,736
4,837
97,827
$ 671,092

35,624
8,347
29,257
33,735
—
5,667
112,630
$626,580

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Salaries, wages and other compensation
Income taxes
Taxes, other than income taxes
Other accrued expenses
Current maturities of long-term debt
Total current liabilities

$ 47,420
19,254
6,435
4,414
32,662
10,730
120,915

$ 41,107
17,510
4,231
3,560
26,657
10,972
104,037

10,741
11,026
22,744
—
1,107

21,439
9,227
19,367
9,658
531

60,468
31,341
519,815
3,923
—
(110,988)
504,559
$ 671,092

59,212
13,203
452,672
9,398
(5,873)
(66,291)
462,321
$626,580

Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Software
Less accumulated depreciation
Other assets:
Goodwill
Other non-amortizable intangibles
Cash surrender value of life insurance
Pension assets
Deferred income taxes
Other

Long-term debt, less current maturities
Deferred compensation
Accrued pension liabilities
Deferred income taxes
Other liabilities
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $1 par value: authorized 160,000,000 shares; shares issued,
including treasury shares: 2006 – 60,468,000; 2005 – 59,211,814
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Unearned compensation
Cost of shares in treasury: 2006 – 5,005,487 shares; 2005 – 3,082,548 shares
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
( ) Denotes deduction.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income
Fiscal Year
(Thousands of Dollars, Except Per Share Data)
COMMON STOCK
Balance at beginning of the year
Common stock issued under stock incentive plans
(2006 – 1,255,286 shares; 2005 – 1,214,857 shares;
2004 – 2,081,586 shares)
Impact of stock split on treasury shares
Balance at end of the year
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of the year
Stock-based compensation expense
Reclassification of unearned compensation upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)
Amounts associated with common stock issued
under stock incentive plans:
Proceeds over par value
Income tax benefits
Impact of stock split on treasury shares
Issuance of treasury shares (2006 – 14,511 shares;
2005 – 11,662 shares; 2004 – 8,924 shares)
Net change in employee notes receivable
Balance at end of the year
RETAINED EARNINGS
Balance at beginning of the year
Impact of stock split on treasury shares
Net earnings
Cash dividends (2006 – $.30 per share;
2005 – $.26 per share; 2004 – $.19 per share)
Balance at end of the year
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Balance at beginning of the year
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Change in fair value of foreign exchange contracts, net of taxes
(2006 – $901; 2005 – $1,280; 2004 – $174)
Pension adjustments, net of taxes
(2006 – $6,885; 2005 – $303; 2004 – $524)
Balance at end of the year
UNEARNED COMPENSATION
Balance at beginning of the year
Awards under restricted stock incentive plans
Compensation expense
Reclassification of unearned compensation upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)
Balance at end of the year
COST OF SHARES IN TREASURY
Balance at beginning of the year
Common stock purchased for treasury (2006 – 1,937,450 shares;
2005 – 2,994,210 shares; 2004 – 2,251,972 shares)
Issuance of treasury shares (2006 – 14,511 shares;
2005 – 11,662 shares; 2004 – 8,924 shares)
Impact of stock split on treasury shares
Balance at end of the year

2006

2005

2004

$ 59,212

$ 67,350

$ 66,389

1,256
—
60,468

1,214
(9,352)
59,212

2,082
(1,121)
67,350

13,203
7,155
(5,873)

99,518
—
—

81,980
—
—

12,254
4,672
—

14,609
3,720
(104,726)

8,878
7,782
1,121

55
(125)
31,341

12
70
13,203

87
(330)
99,518

452,672
—
83,647

437,406
(44,725)
74,467

382,603
—
65,938

(16,504)

(14,476)

(11,135)

519,815

452,672

437,406

9,398
9,548

19,446
(11,544)

(1,657)

2,085

(13,366)

(589)

8,540
9,727
160
1,019

3,923

9,398

(5,873)
—
—
5,873

(4,955)
(4,190)
3,272
—

(4,138)
(4,165)
3,348
—

(5,873)

(4,955)

(66,291)

(160,474)

(105,280)

(45,009)

(64,856)

(55,331)

—

312
—
(110,988)

236
158,803
(66,291)

19,446

137
—
(160,474)

Total stockholders’ equity at end of the year

$504,559

$462,321

$458,291

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Net earnings
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Change in fair value of foreign exchange contracts, net of taxes
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of taxes

$ 83,647
9,548
(1,657)
(306)

$ 74,467
(11,544)
2,085
(589)

$ 65,938
9,727
160
1,019

$ 91,232

$ 64,419

$ 76,844

Total comprehensive income
( ) Denotes deduction.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Operations
Fiscal Year
2006

2005

2004

(Thousands of Dollars, Except Per Share Data)

Revenue

$1,141,887

$1,060,999

$991,909

700,349
318,243
2,973
(3,175)
1,205
1,019,595
122,292

655,800
291,891
3,647
(1,736)
150
949,752
111,247

617,774
274,125
4,185
(940)
(305)
894,839
97,070

38,645
83,647

36,780
74,467

30,879
66,191

—

—

253
$ 65,938

Cost and expenses:
Cost of products sold
Selling and administrative expenses
Interest expense
Interest income
Other (income) expense
Earnings before income taxes and minority interest
Income taxes
Earnings before minority interest
Minority interest
Net earnings

$

83,647

$

74,467

Net earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted

$

1.52
1.47

$

1.33
1.27

$

1.15
1.09

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Fiscal Year
2006

2005

$ 83,647

$ 74,467

2004

(Thousands of Dollars)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net earnings
Adjustments necessary to reconcile net earnings
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
Deferred income taxes (credit)
Stock-based compensation expense
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
Pension
Other
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other operating assets
Accounts payable
Other operating liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

$ 65,938

19,641
981
(8,543)
7,155
(3,599)
7,254
3,498

19,470
570
(4,908)
3,272
—
6,221
2,378

18,683
388
1,179
3,348
—
1,025
1,452

6,409
(18,764)
(3,382)
5,434
8,588
108,319

(7,739)
19,375
11,221
(4,862)
(2,153)
117,312

(2,332)
(15,833)
(2,776)
21,229
11,912
104,213

—
(17,067)
(1,115)
(18,182)

(4,602)
(19,160)
3,146
(20,616)

—
(18,080)
1,820
(16,260)

61,685
(72,624)
(16,079)
(45,009)
13,752
3,599
(54,676)
3,944
39,405

69,972
(81,465)
(14,814)
(64,856)
11,951
—
(79,212)
(4,398)
13,086

44,385
(60,404)
(11,135)
(55,331)
6,688
—
(75,797)
4,660
16,816

85,258
$ 124,663

72,172
$ 85,258

55,356
$ 72,172

$

$

$

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Other
Net cash used in investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Payments of long-term debt
Cash dividends paid
Purchase of common stock for treasury
Proceeds from shares issued under stock incentive plans
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Interest paid
Net income taxes paid
( ) Denotes reduction in cash and cash equivalents.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2,545
35,784

3,171
27,207

4,056
23,868

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
N AT U R E O F O P E R AT I O N S
Wolverine World Wide, Inc. (NYSE: WWW) is a leading designer, manufacturer and marketer of a broad line of quality casual
shoes, performance outdoor footwear, work shoes and boots, and uniform shoes and boots. The Company’s global portfolio of
owned and licensed brands includes: Bates®, Cat® Footwear, Harley-Davidson® Footwear, Hush Puppies®, HYTEST®, Merrell®,
Patagonia® Footwear, Sebago®, Stanley® Footgear and Wolverine®. Apparel and licensing programs are utilized to extend the
Company’s owned brands into product categories beyond footwear. The Company also operates a retail division to showcase its
brands and branded footwear from other manufacturers, a tannery that produces Wolverine Performance Leathers™ and a pigskin
procurement operation.
P R I N C I P L E S O F C O N S O L I D AT I O N
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Wolverine World Wide, Inc. and its wholly and majority owned
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Company”). All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
FISCAL YEAR
The Company’s fiscal year is the 52- or 53-week period that ends on the Saturday nearest to December 31. Fiscal years presented
in this report include the 52-week periods ended December 30, 2006, December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005.
U S E O F E S T I M AT E S
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is recognized on the sale of products manufactured or sourced by the Company when the related goods have been
shipped, legal title has passed to the customer and collectibility is reasonably assured. Revenue generated through programs
with licensees and distributors involving products bearing the Company’s trademarks is recognized as earned according to
stated contractual terms upon either the purchase or shipment of branded products by licensees and distributors.
The Company records provisions against gross revenue for estimated stock returns and cash discounts in the period when the
related revenue is recorded. These estimates are based on factors that include, but are not limited to, historical stock returns,
historical discounts taken and analysis of credit memorandum activity.
COST OF PRODUCTS SOLD
Cost of products sold for the Company’s operations include the actual product costs, including inbound freight charges, purchasing,
sourcing, inspection and receiving costs. Warehousing costs are included in selling and administrative expenses.
SHIPPING AND HANDLING COSTS
Shipping and handling costs that are charged to and reimbursed by the customer are recognized as revenue, while the related
expenses incurred by the Company are recorded as cost of products sold in the consolidated statements of operations.
C A S H E Q U I VA L E N T S
All short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are considered cash equivalents.
A L L O WA N C E F O R U N C O L L E C T I B L E A C C O U N T S
The Company maintains an allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable for estimated losses resulting from its customers’
inability to make required payments. Company management evaluates the allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable based
on a review of current customer status and historical collection experience. Adjustments to these estimates may be required if the
financial condition of the Company’s customers were to change. The Company does not require collateral or other security on
trade accounts receivable.
INVENTORIES
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method for all domestic
raw materials and work-in-process inventories, and certain U.S. finished goods inventories. Cost is determined using methods
approximating cost under the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method for all raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods inventories
in foreign countries. The FIFO method is also used for all finished goods inventories of the Company’s retail business, due to the
unique nature of that operation, and for certain U.S. finished goods inventories that were acquired as part of asset purchase
transactions. Once elected, the Company has applied these inventory cost valuation methods consistently from year to year.
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P R O P E R T Y, P L A N T A N D E Q U I P M E N T
Property, plant and equipment are stated on the basis of cost and include expenditures for new facilities, major renewals,
betterments and software. Normal repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed using the straight-line method. The depreciable lives range from five
to forty years for buildings and improvements and from three to ten years for machinery, equipment and software. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated at the lesser of the estimated useful life or lease term, including reasonably assured lease renewals
as determined at lease inception.
G O O D W I L L A N D O T H E R I N TA N G I B L E S
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net tangible and identifiable intangible assets of acquired
businesses. Other intangibles consist primarily of trademarks, brand names, patents and customer relationships. Goodwill and
intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are not amortized, but are subject to impairment tests at least annually in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. The
Company reviews the carrying amounts of goodwill and other non-amortizable intangible assets annually by reporting unit to
determine if such assets may be impaired. If the carrying amounts of these assets are not recoverable based upon a discounted
cash flow analysis, such assets are reduced by the estimated shortfall of fair value to recorded value. Other amortizable intangible
assets (principally patents) are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives (periods ranging from
two to fifteen years). Other amortizable intangible assets are included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheets and
have net carrying amounts of $3,019,000 and $2,318,000 for 2006 and 2005, respectively, and accumulated amortization of
$2,457,000 and $1,610,000 for 2006 and 2005, respectively. Estimated aggregate amortization expense for such intangibles for
each of the five fiscal years subsequent to 2006 is as follows: 2007 – $1,065,000; 2008 – $929,000; 2009 – $726,000;
2010 – $362,000; 2011 – $87,000.
The Company has performed the required annual impairment tests and has determined that there was no impairment indicated for
recorded goodwill and other non-amortizable intangibles.
The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill and other non-amortizable intangibles for the years ended December 30, 2006 and
December 31, 2005 are as follows:
Goodwill

Trademarks

Total

Balance at January 1, 2005
Intangibles acquired
Purchase accounting adjustments
Foreign currency translation effects
Balance at December 31, 2005

$35,552
2,489
313
(2,730)
$35,624

$8,090
257
—
—
$8,347

$43,642
2,746
313
(2,730)
$43,971

Intangibles acquired
Trademark disposals
Foreign currency translation effects

—
—
3,152

(Thousands of Dollars)

Balance at December 30, 2006

$38,776

277
(118)
—
$8,506

277
(118)
3,152
$47,282

I M PA I R M E N T O R D I S P O S A L O F L O N G - L I V E D A S S E T S
The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of an asset or an asset group may not be recoverable. Each impairment test is based on a comparison of the carrying
amount of the asset or asset group to the future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the assets. If such assets
are considered to be impaired, the impairment amount to be recognized is the amount by which the carrying value of the assets
exceeds their fair value.
S T O C K - B A S E D C O M P E N S AT I O N
Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company followed Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees, and related Interpretations, in accounting for its stock incentive plans. The Company did not recognize stock-based
compensation expense related to employee stock options in its statements of operations for periods prior to the adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, as options granted had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying
common stock on the date of grant. Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective transition method. Under that transition method, compensation cost recognized
in the year ended December 30, 2006 includes: (a) compensation cost for all stock-based payments granted prior to, but not
yet vested as of January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimate in accordance with the original provisions of

32 W O LV E R I N E W O R L D W I D E , I N C .

SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and (b) compensation cost for all stock-based payments granted
subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R).
Results of prior periods have not been restated.
As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006, the Company's earnings before income taxes for the year
ended December 30, 2006 is $3,214,000 lower than if it had continued to account for stock-based compensation under
APB Opinion No. 25. The Company's net earnings for the year ended December 30, 2006 are lower by $2,511,000, or
$.05 per basic share and $.04 per diluted share.
The Company recognized compensation costs of $7,155,000 and related income tax benefits of $1,967,000 for its stock-based
compensation plans in the statements of operations for the year ended December 30, 2006. Compensation costs capitalized as
part of inventory and property, plant and equipment were not material.
Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), the Company presented all tax benefits of deductions resulting from the exercise of
stock options as operating cash flows in the statements of cash flows. SFAS No. 123(R) requires the cash flows resulting from
the tax benefits resulting from tax deductions in excess of the compensation cost recognized for those options (excess tax benefits)
to be classified as financing cash flows. The $3,599,000 excess tax benefit classified as a financing cash inflow would have been
classified as an operating cash inflow if the Company had not adopted SFAS No. 123(R).
Effective December 13, 2005, the Board of Directors accelerated the vesting of nonvested stock options previously granted to
employees and officers of the Company under its various stock-based incentive plans. As a result of this action, options to
purchase approximately 1,003,000 shares of common stock that otherwise would have vested in 2006, 2007 and 2008 became
fully vested and an additional $4,407,000 of pro forma stock-based compensation expense was recognized in the quarter ended
December 31, 2005. Accordingly, compensation costs of $2,185,000, $1,495,000 and $727,000 in 2006, 2007 and 2008,
respectively, that would have been recognized in each year after the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) will not be recognized due
to the modification. The decision to accelerate the vesting of these options, which the Company believes to be in the best interests
of its stockholders, was made primarily to reduce non-cash compensation expense that would have been recorded in future
periods following the Company's adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).
Pro forma information regarding net earnings and earnings per share has been determined as if the Company had applied the
fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to its stock awards for all periods presented. For purposes of pro forma
disclosures, the estimated fair values of stock options are amortized to expense over the related vesting periods and awards
subject to acceleration of vesting upon retirement are recognized over the explicit service period up to the date of actual retirement.
The Company's pro forma information under SFAS No. 123 is as follows:
2005

2004

Net earnings, as reported
Add:
Total stock-based employee compensation expense
included in reported net income, net of related tax effects
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value method for all awards,
net of related tax effects

$74,467

$65,938

3,272

3,374

7,266

8,330

Pro forma net earnings

$70,473

$60,982

$

$

(Thousands of Dollars, Except Per Share Data)

Net earnings per share:
Basic – as reported
Basic – pro forma
Diluted – as reported
Diluted – pro forma

1.33
1.26
1.27
1.20

1.15
1.06
1.09
1.01
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The Company estimated the fair value of employee stock options on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model. The estimated
weighted-average fair value for each option granted was $5.29, $5.10 and $4.68 per share in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively,
with the following weighted-average assumptions:

Expected market price volatility
Risk-free interest rate (2)
Dividend yield (3)
Expected term (4)

(1)

2006

2005

2004

24.5%
4.6%
1.4%
4 years

23.9%
3.7%
1.1%
4 years

31.7%
3.4%
1.0%
4 years

(1)

Based on historical volatility of the Company's common stock. The expected volatility is based on the daily percentage change in the price of
the stock over four years.
(2)
Represents the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect for the expected term of the option at the time of grant.
(3)
Represents the Company's cash dividend yield for the expected term.
(4)
Represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The Company determined that all employee groups
exhibit similar exercise and post-vesting termination behavior to determine the expected term.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated condensed statements of operations for the year ended
December 30, 2006 has been reduced for estimated forfeitures, as it is based on awards ultimately expected to vest.
SFAS No. 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if
actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Forfeitures were estimated based on historical experience. In the Company's
pro forma information required under SFAS No. 123 for the periods prior to fiscal 2006, the Company accounted for forfeitures
as they occurred. The cumulative effect of the change in accounting for forfeitures was not material.
ADVERTISING COSTS
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and customer specific advertising dollars are expensed when earned by customers.
Total advertising expense was $42,037,000 in 2006, $40,059,000 in 2005 and $38,611,000 in 2004, and includes customer
specific advertising dollars of $9,327,000 in 2006, $6,445,000 in 2005 and $9,689,000 in 2004. The Company provides sales
incentives to certain retail customers in the form of a cooperative advertising program and accounts for this in accordance with
EITF 01-9, Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (Including a Reseller of the Vendor’s Products).
Under this program, customers are reimbursed for Company-approved advertising expenditures where the value to the Company
is objectively verifiable.
I N C O M E TA X E S
The provision for income taxes is based on the earnings reported in the consolidated financial statements. A deferred income tax
asset or liability is determined by applying currently enacted tax laws and rates to the cumulative temporary differences between the
carrying values of assets and liabilities for financial statement and income tax purposes.
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is computed based on weighted-average shares of common stock outstanding during each year after
adjustment for nonvested common stock issued under restricted stock incentive plans. Diluted earnings per share assumes the
exercise of dilutive stock options and the vesting of all common stock under restricted stock programs.
The following table sets forth the reconciliation of weighted average shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings
per share:
2006

2005

2004

Weighted average shares outstanding during the year
Adjustment for nonvested restricted common stock
Denominator for basic earnings per share
Effect of dilutive stock options
Adjustment for nonvested common stock - treasury method

55,655,822
(802,624)
54,853,198
1,622,103
455,806

57,241,893
(1,098,177)
56,143,716
1,742,344
789,065

58,498,042
(1,099,677)
57,398,365
2,265,984
809,708

Denominator for diluted earnings per share

56,931,107

58,675,125

60,474,057
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Options to purchase 507,775 shares of common stock in 2006, 516,335 shares in 2005 and 588,978 shares in 2004 have not been
included in the denominator for the computation of diluted earnings per share because the related exercise prices were greater than
the average market price for the period and, therefore, they were antidilutive.
STOCK SPLIT
On December 15, 2004, the Company announced a three-for-two stock split in the form of a stock dividend on shares of common
stock outstanding at January 3, 2005 that was distributed to stockholders on February 1, 2005. All share and per share amounts in
the consolidated financial statements and related notes have been adjusted for all periods to reflect the stock split. Treasury shares
were not split in the transaction however, in conjunction with the stock split, 9,352,361 shares of treasury stock were issued to
fund a portion of the transaction.
FOREIGN CURRENCY
For the Company’s international subsidiaries, the local currency is the functional currency. Assets and liabilities of these subsidiaries
are translated into U.S. dollars at the year-end exchange rate. Operating statement amounts are translated at average exchange rates
for the period. The cumulative translation adjustments resulting from changes in exchange rates are included in the consolidated
balance sheets as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity. Transaction gains and losses
are included in the consolidated statements of operations and were not material.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts and notes receivable, accounts and notes
payable and long-term debt. Except for fixed rate long-term debt with a carrying value of $21,429,000 and a fair value of
$21,723,000 at December 30, 2006 and a carrying value of $32,385,000 and a fair value of $32,975,000 at December 31, 2005,
the Company’s estimate of the fair values of these financial instruments approximates their carrying amounts for the respective
years. Fair value was determined using discounted cash flow analyses and current interest rates for similar instruments. The
Company does not hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes.
The Company follows SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended by
SFAS Nos. 137 and 138, which requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the consolidated balance sheets at fair
value and establishes criteria for designation and effectiveness of hedging relationships. The Company utilizes foreign currency
forward exchange contracts to manage the volatility associated with foreign currency inventory purchases made by non-U.S.
wholesale operations in the normal course of business. At December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, foreign exchange
contracts with a notional value of $56,399,000 and $61,404,000, respectively, were outstanding to purchase various currencies
(principally U.S. dollars) with maturities ranging up to 252 days. These contracts have been designated as cash flow hedges.
As of December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, a liability of $1,352,000 and an asset of $715,000, respectively, have been
recognized for the fair value of the foreign currency forward exchange contracts.
The fair value of the foreign currency forward exchange contracts represents the estimated receipts or payments necessary to
terminate the contracts. Hedge effectiveness is evaluated by the hypothetical derivative method. Any hedge ineffectiveness is
reported within the cost of products sold caption of the consolidated statements of operations. Hedge ineffectiveness was not
material in 2006 or 2005. If, in the future, the foreign exchange contracts are determined to be ineffective hedges or terminated
before their contractual termination dates, the Company would be required to reclassify into earnings all or a portion of the
unrealized amounts related to the cash flow hedges that are currently included in accumulated other comprehensive income
within stockholders’ equity.
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Comprehensive income represents net earnings and any revenue, expenses, gains and losses that, under accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States, are excluded from net earnings and recognized directly as a component
of stockholders’ equity.
Ending accumulated other comprehensive income is as follows:
2006

2005

$21,790

$12,243

(Thousands of Dollars)

Foreign currency translation adjustments
Foreign currency cash flow hedge adjustments, net of taxes
(2006 – $614; 2005 – $287)
Pension adjustments, net of taxes
(2006 – $8,664; 2005 – $1,779)
Accumulated other comprehensive income

(1,048)
(16,819)
$ 3,923

608
(3,453)
$ 9,398
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R E C L A S S I F I C AT I O N S
Certain amounts previously reported in 2005 and 2004 have been reclassified to conform with the presentation used in 2006.

2. Inventories
Inventories of $71,420,000 at December 30, 2006 and $72,546,000 at December 31, 2005 have been valued using the
LIFO method. If the FIFO method had been used, inventories would have been $8,191,000 and $8,858,000 higher than
reported at December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, respectively.

3. Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following obligations:
2006

2005

$21,429
42
21,471
10,730
$10,741

$32,385
26
32,411
10,972
$21,439

(Thousands of Dollars)

6.5% senior notes payable
Other
Less current maturities

The 6.5% unsecured senior notes payable require annual principal payments of $10,714,000 due through the maturity date of
December 8, 2008. In connection with the issuance of these senior notes, the Company entered into an interest rate lock agreement
with a bank that was settled in 1998 and resulted in a prepayment of interest of $2,200,000. This prepayment is being amortized
over the remaining term of the notes using the effective interest method. The remaining unamortized balance at December 30, 2006
was $480,000.
The Company has an unsecured revolving credit agreement that allows for borrowings up to $150,000,000, subject to increase or
decrease as specified in the credit agreement. This agreement, which expires in July 2010, requires that interest be paid at a variable
rate based on one of the following options elected by the Company: prime, LIBOR or money market rate plus applicable spread.
No amounts were outstanding under revolving credit facilities at December 30, 2006 or December 31, 2005.
The Company had commercial letters of credit outstanding of $2,813,000 and $2,936,000 at December 30, 2006 and
December 31, 2005, respectively.
The long-term loan agreements contain restrictive covenants that, among other things, require the Company to maintain certain
financial ratios and minimum levels of consolidated net worth. At December 30, 2006, the Company was in compliance with all
restrictive covenants. The agreements also impose restrictions on securing additional debt, sale and merger transactions and the
disposition of significant assets.
Principal maturities of long-term debt subsequent to 2007 are as follows: 2008 – $10,726,000; 2009 – $8,000; 2010 – $7,000.
Interest costs of $170,000 in 2006, $208,000 in 2005 and $408,000 in 2004 were capitalized in connection with various capital
improvement and computer hardware and software installation projects.

4. Leases
The Company leases machinery, equipment and certain warehouse, office and retail store space under operating lease agreements
that expire at various dates through 2023. Certain leases contain renewal provisions and generally require the Company to pay
utilities, insurance, taxes and other operating expenses. At December 30, 2006, minimum rental payments due under all
noncancelable leases were as follows: 2007 – $13,020,000; 2008 – $11,979,000; 2009 – $10,456,000; 2010 – $8,366,000;
2011 – $6,909,000; thereafter – $30,329,000.
Rental expense under all operating leases consisted primarily of minimum rentals and totaled $13,934,000 in 2006,
$12,403,000 in 2005 and $11,542,000 in 2004.
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5. Capital Stock
The Company has 2,000,000 authorized shares of $1 par value preferred stock, of which none is issued or outstanding.
The Company has a preferred stock rights plan that is designed to protect stockholder interests in the event the Company is
confronted with coercive or unfair takeover tactics. Two-thirds of one right is associated with each share of common stock
currently outstanding. The rights trade with the common stock and become exercisable only upon the occurrence of certain
triggering events. Each right, when exercisable, will entitle the holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of Series B junior
participating preferred stock for $120. The Company has designated 500,000 shares of preferred stock as Series B junior
participating preferred stock for possible future issuance under the Company’s preferred stock rights plan. Upon issuance for
reasons other than liquidation, each share of Series B junior participating preferred stock will have 100 votes and a preferential
quarterly dividend equal to the greater of $21 per share or 100 times the dividend declared on common stock.
If, after a triggering event, the Company is a party to a merger or other business combination, regardless of whether the Company
is the surviving corporation, right holders other than the party to the merger will be entitled to receive common stock of the
surviving corporation worth twice the exercise price of the rights. The plan also provides for protection against self-dealing
transactions by certain 15% stockholders or the activities of an adverse person (as defined in the plan). The Company may redeem
the rights for $.01 each at any time prior to a person being designated as an adverse person or fifteen days after a triggering event.
Unless redeemed earlier, all rights expire on May 7, 2007. The Board of Directors can elect to exclude certain transactions from
triggering the exercise of preferred stock rights and other actions under the plan.
As of December 30, 2006, the Company had stock options outstanding or available for grant under stock incentive plans adopted
in 1993, 1995, 1997, 1999, 2001, 2003 and 2005. Shares of restricted stock may also be granted under each of these plans, with
the exception of the 1993 plan. As of December 30, 2006, the Company had approximately 3,908,000 stock incentive units
available for issuance under the Stock Incentive Plan of 2005. Under the provisions of the Stock Incentive Plan of 2005, each
option granted counts as one stock incentive unit and each share of restricted stock granted counts as two stock incentive units.
In addition, as of December 30, 2006, the Company had approximately 534,000 stock incentive units available for grant under
the balance of its other plans. Options granted under each plan have an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the
underlying stock on the grant date, expire no later than ten years from the grant date and generally vest over three years.
Common stock issued under these plans is subject to certain restrictions, including a prohibition against any sale, transfer or other
disposition by the officer or employee during the vesting period (except for certain transfers for estate planning purposes for certain
officers) and a requirement to forfeit all or a certain portion of the award upon certain terminations of employment or upon failure
to achieve performance criteria in certain instances. These restrictions lapse over a three- to five-year period from the date of the
award. The Company has elected to recognize expense for these stock-based incentive plans ratably over the vesting term on a
straight-line basis. Certain option and restricted share awards provide for accelerated vesting under various scenarios, including
retirement and upon a change in control of the Company. With regard to acceleration of vesting upon retirement, employees of
eligible retirement age are vested in accordance with plan provisions and applicable stock option and restricted stock agreements.
The Company issues shares to plan participants upon exercise or vesting of stock-based incentive awards from either authorized,
but unissued, shares or treasury shares.
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A summary of the transactions under the stock option plans is as follows:
Shares Under
Option

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price

Average Remaining
Contractual Term
(Years)

Aggregate
Intrinsic Value

Outstanding at January 3, 2004
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

6,632,964
1,938,069
(2,880,498)
(108,186)

$10.41
17.75
9.90
13.60

Outstanding at January 1, 2005
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

5,582,349
643,695
(1,166,838)
(18,494)

$13.14
22.89
11.62
16.30

5.8

$43,531,000

Outstanding at December 31, 2005
Granted
Exercised
Cancelled

5,040,712
735,210
(1,168,639)
(32,338)

$14.72
22.71
12.51
20.46

5.6

$39,201,000

Outstanding at December 30, 2006
Estimated forfeitures

4,574,945
(7,796)

$16.53

5.6

$54,873,000

Vested or expected to vest at December 30, 2006
Nonvested at December 30, 2006 and expected to vest

4,567,149
(670,004)

$16.52

5.6

$54,828,000

Exercisable at December 30, 2006

3,897,145

$15.46

5.0

$50,890,000

The total pre-tax intrinsic value of options exercised during the year ended December 30, 2006 was $14,375,000. As of
December 30, 2006, there was $1,639,000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to stock option awards that is expected
to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 0.7 years.
The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding table represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value, based on the Company's closing
stock price of $28.52 as of December 30, 2006, which would have been received by the option holders had all option holders
exercised in-the-money options as of that date. The total number of in-the-money options exercisable as of December 30, 2006
was 3,897,145. As of December 31, 2005, 5,040,712 outstanding options were exercisable, and the weighted-average exercise
price was $14.72.
A summary of the nonvested restricted shares issued under stock award plans is as follows:

Shares

Weighted-Average
Grant Date
Fair Value

Nonvested at January 3, 2004
Granted
Vested
Forfeited

985,877
300,861
(367,442)
(13,734)

$ 9.32
15.48
8.00
12.37

Nonvested at January 1, 2005

905,562

$11.85

188,150
(159,821)
—

23.03
10.80
—

933,891

$14.28

178,950
(324,735)
(12,296)

22.59
12.06
17.09

775,810

$17.09

Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Nonvested at December 31, 2005
Granted
Vested
Forfeited
Nonvested at December 30, 2006
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As of December 30, 2006, there was $5,001,000 of unrecognized compensation cost related to nonvested share-based
compensation arrangements granted under restricted stock award plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 1.3 years. The total fair value of shares vested during the year ended December 30, 2006
was $7,283,000.

6. Retirement Plans
The Company has noncontributory, defined benefit pension plans covering a majority of its domestic employees. The Company’s
principal defined benefit pension plan provides benefits based on the employees’ years of service and final average earnings (as
defined in the plan), while the other plan provides benefits at a fixed rate per year of service. The Company intends to annually
contribute amounts deemed necessary to maintain the plans on a sound actuarial basis.
The Company has a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (“SERP”) for certain current and former employees that entitles them
to receive payments from the Company following retirement based on the employees’ years of service and final average earnings
(as defined in the SERP). Under the SERP, the employees can elect early retirement with a corresponding reduction in benefits. The
Company has individual deferred compensation agreements with certain former employees that entitle them to receive payments
from the Company for a period of fifteen to eighteen years following retirement. The Company maintains life insurance policies
with a cash surrender value of $31,025,000 at December 30, 2006 and $28,557,000 at December 31, 2005 that are intended to
fund deferred compensation benefits under the SERP and deferred compensation agreements.
The Company has a defined contribution money accumulation plan covering substantially all domestic employees that provides
for Company contributions based on earnings. This plan is combined with the principal defined benefit pension plan for funding
purposes to the extent allowable under applicable regulations. The Company recognized expense for the money accumulation plan
of $2,100,000 in 2006, $2,031,000 in 2005 and $1,788,000 in 2004. The Company has certain defined contribution plans at
foreign subsidiaries. Contributions to these plans were $978,000 in 2006, $962,000 in 2005 and $832,000 in 2004. The Company
also has a defined benefit plan at a foreign location that provides for retirement benefits based on years of service. At
December 30, 2006, the obligation recorded under this plan was $2,500,000 with the majority recognized in the deferred
compensation liability on the accompanying balance sheet.
On December 30, 2006, the Company adopted the recognition and disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans. SFAS No. 158 requires the Company to recognize the funded status
of its pension plans in the December 30, 2006 consolidated balance sheets, with a corresponding adjustment to accumulated
other comprehensive income, net of tax. The adjustment to accumulated other comprehensive income at adoption represents
the net unrecognized actuarial losses and unrecognized prior service costs, which were previously netted against the plan’s funded
status in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for
Pensions. These amounts will be subsequently recognized as a component of net periodic pension cost on the same basis as the
amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income at adoption of SFAS No. 158.
The incremental effects of adopting the provisions of SFAS No. 158 on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets at
December 30, 2006 are presented in the following table. There was no effect on the Company’s consolidated statements
of operations for the year ended December 30, 2006, or for any prior period presented, and it will not affect the Company’s
operating results in future periods.
Before
Implementation
of SFAS No. 158

Change Due to
SFAS No. 158

After
Implementation
of SFAS No. 158

(Thousands of Dollars)

Assets:
Prepaid pension cost
Deferred income taxes
Intangible asset – pension

$28,443
1,936
854

$(18,210)
6,728
(854)

$10,233
8,664
—

Total assets

$31,233

$(12,336)

$18,897

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity:
Accrued pension liabilities
Accumulated other comprehensive income

$21,166
(3,759)

$ 1,578
(13,060)

$22,744
(16,819)

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$17,407

$(11,482)

$ 5,925
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The Company currently uses a September 30 measurement date for its defined benefit plans. The following summarizes the status
of and changes in the Company’s pension assets and related obligations for its pension plans (which include the Company’s defined
benefit pension plans and the SERP) as of:
September 30
2006

2005

Change in projected benefit obligations:
Projected benefit obligations at beginning of the year
Service cost pertaining to benefits earned during the year
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations
Actuarial losses
Benefits paid to plan participants

$167,631
4,940
10,342
1,124
(7,775)

$156,868
4,272
9,444
4,108
(7,061)

Projected benefit obligations at end of the year

$176,262

$167,631

Change in fair value of pension assets:
Fair value of pension assets at beginning of the year
Actual return on plan assets
Company contributions
Benefits paid to plan participants

$158,407
8,991
3,875
(7,775)

$144,272
17,442
3,754
(7,061)

Fair value of pension assets at end of the year

$163,498

$158,407

Funded status

$ (12,764)

$ (9,224)

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets:
Non current assets
Non current liabilities
Net amount recognized

$ 10,233
(22,997)
$ (12,764)

$ 34,809
(20,016)
$ 14,793

$

$

3,453

11,770
1,290
$ 16,819

$

—
—
3,453

$ (12,764)

$ (9,224)

(Thousands of Dollars)

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Unrecognized net actuarial loss
Effect of adoption of SFAS No. 158:
Unrecognized net actuarial loss
Unrecognized prior service cost
Net amount recognized
Funded status of pension plans and SERP (supplemental):
Funded status of qualified defined benefit plans and SERP
Nonqualified trust assets (cash surrender value of life insurance) recorded in other
assets and intended to satisfy the projected benefit obligation of unfunded
supplemental employee retirement plans
Net funded status of pension plans and SERP (supplemental)

3,759

29,020

26,212

$ 16,256

$ 16,988

The Company made contributions of $253,000 and $178,000 subsequent to the measurement date and before the fiscal years
ended 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:
September 30
2006

2005

(Thousands of Dollars)

Projected benefit obligations
Accumulated benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets

$32,847
31,268
9,463

$24,216
22,815
2,799

The accumulated benefit obligations for all defined benefit pension plans and the SERP were $165,935,000 and $157,931,000 at
September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The following is a summary of net pension and SERP cost recognized by the Company:
2006

2005

$ (4,940)
(10,342)
12,844
(8,743)
$(11,181)

$ (4,272)
(9,444)
12,013
(7,800)
$ (9,503)

2004

(Thousands of Dollars)

Service cost pertaining to benefits earned during the year
Interest cost on projected benefit obligations
Expected return on pension assets
Net amortization loss
Net pension cost

$ (3,983)
(8,991)
11,906
(5,548)
$ (6,616)

The prior service cost and actuarial loss included in accumulated other comprehensive income and expected to be recognized in net
periodic pension cost during 2007 is $427,000 ($282,000, net of tax) and $4,952,000 ($3,268,000, net of tax), respectively.
Expense for qualified defined benefit pension plans was $8,759,000 in 2006, $7,916,000 in 2005 and $4,825,000 in 2004.
2006

2005

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at September 30:
Discount rate
Rate of compensation increase

6.25%
3.50%

6.00%
3.50%

Weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended:
Discount rate
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increase

6.00%
8.75%
3.50%

5.98%
8.75%
3.50%

Unrecognized net experience losses exceeding certain corridors are amortized over a five-year period, unless the minimum
amortization method based on average remaining service periods produces a higher amortization.
The long-term rate of return is based on overall market expectations for a balanced portfolio with an asset mix similar to the
Company’s, utilizing historic returns for broad market and fixed income indices.

Weighted average asset allocations at September 30 by asset category are as follows:
Equity securities
Fixed income investments
Cash and money market investments

2006

2005

72.6%
20.0%
7.4%
100.0%

74.4%
19.7%
5.9%
100.0%

The Company’s investment policy for plan assets uses a blended approach of U.S. and foreign equities combined with U.S. fixed
income investments. Policy guidelines indicate that total equities should not exceed 80% and fixed income securities should not
exceed 50%. Within the equity and fixed income classifications, the investments are diversified.
The Company expects to contribute $3,000,000 to its qualified defined benefit pension plans and $938,000 to the SERP in 2007.
Expected benefit payments for the five years subsequent to 2006 and the sum of the five years following those are as follows:
2007 – $8,061,000; 2008 – $8,632,000; 2009 – $9,092,000; 2010 – $9,430,000; 2011 – $9,878,000; and 2012 through
2016 – $58,874,000.
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7. Income Taxes
The provisions for income taxes consist of the following:
2006

2005

2004

$35,442
11,746
(8,543)
$38,645

$30,458
11,230
(4,908)
$36,780

$23,096
6,604
1,179
$30,879

(Thousands of Dollars)

Currently payable:
Federal
State and foreign
Deferred (credit) expense

A reconciliation of the Company’s total income tax expense and the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income
tax rate of 35% to earnings before income taxes is as follows:
2006

2005

2004

$42,850
349
(2,123)
(481)
—
(93)
(1,535)
(322)
$38,645

$38,937
314
(1,625)
(740)
1,400
(853)
—
(653)
$36,780

$33,975
343
(2,186)
(550)
—
(313)
—
(390)
$30,879

(Thousands of Dollars)

Income taxes at statutory rate
State income taxes, net of federal income tax reduction
Nontaxable earnings of foreign affiliates
Research and development credits
Repatriation of earnings of foreign subsidiaries
Foreign earnings taxed at rates differing from the U.S. statutory rate
Tax reserve adjustments
Other

Significant components of the Company’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of the end of 2006 and 2005 are as follows:
2006

2005

Deferred income tax assets:
Accounts receivable and inventory valuation allowances
Deferred compensation accruals
Future benefit of foreign net operating losses
Accrued pension costs
Other amounts not deductible until paid
Total deferred income tax assets

$ 4,570
2,140
254
8,664
8,422
24,050

$ 2,541
2,019
254
1,779
5,623
12,216

Deferred income tax liabilities:
Tax over book depreciation
Prepaid pension costs
Other
Total deferred income tax liabilities
Net deferred income tax liabilities

(6,388)
(3,983)
(1,597)
(11,968)
$12,082

(8,131)
(6,821)
(1,511)
(16,463)
$ (4,247)

(Thousands of Dollars)

In 2005, the Company elected to repatriate earnings of foreign subsidiaries as provided under the American Jobs Creation Act
of 2004 (the “Act”), which was enacted on October 22, 2004. The Act provides for a tax deduction of 85% of certain foreign
earnings that were repatriated in 2005. During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Company repatriated $41,547,000 of eligible
foreign earnings for this deduction and as a result recorded tax expense of $1,400,000.
No provision has been made for U.S. federal and state income taxes or foreign taxes that may result from future remittances of the
remaining undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries of $125,293,000 at December 30, 2006 as the Company expects such
earnings will remain invested overseas indefinitely. (At December 31, 2005, undistributed foreign earnings were $89,239,000).
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8. Litigation and Contingencies
The Company is involved in various environmental claims and other legal actions arising in the normal course of business. The
environmental claims include sites where the Environmental Protection Agency has notified the Company that it is a potentially
responsible party with respect to environmental remediation. These remediation claims are subject to ongoing environmental
impact studies, assessment of remediation alternatives, allocation of costs between responsible parties and concurrence by
regulatory authorities and have not yet advanced to a stage where the Company’s liability is fixed. However, after taking into
consideration legal counsel’s evaluation of all actions and claims against the Company, management is currently of the opinion that
their outcome will not have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or future results of operations.
Pursuant to certain of the Company’s lease agreements, the Company has provided financial guarantees to third parties in the form
of indemnification provisions. These provisions indemnify and reimburse the third parties for costs, including but not limited to
adverse judgments in lawsuits, taxes and operating costs. The terms of the guarantees are equal to the terms of the related lease
agreements. The Company is not able to calculate the maximum potential amount of future payments it could be required to make
under these guarantees, as the potential payment is dependent upon the occurrence of future unknown events.
The Company has future minimum royalty obligations due under the terms of certain licenses held by the Company. These
minimum future obligations are as follows:
2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

$1,152

$1,062

$1,328

$1,544

$1,772

(Thousands of Dollars)

Minimum royalties

Minimum royalties are based on both fixed obligations and assumptions regarding the consumer price index. Royalty obligations
in excess of minimum requirements are based upon future sales levels. In accordance with these agreements, the Company incurred
royalty expense of $3,159,000, $3,145,000 and $3,100,000 for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
The terms of certain license agreements also require advertising expenditures based on the level of sales. In accordance with these
agreements, the Company’s advertising obligations, based on actual sales, totaled $2,331,000, $1,906,000 and $1,982,000 for
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

9. Business Segments
The Company has one reportable segment that is engaged in manufacturing, sourcing, marketing, licensing and distributing
branded footwear, apparel and accessories to the retail sector, including casual shoes, dress shoes, performance outdoor footwear,
boots, uniform shoes, work shoes, slippers, moccasins and apparel and accessories. Revenue of this segment is derived from the sale
of branded footwear to external customers as well as royalty income from the licensing of the Company’s trademarks and brand
names to licensees and distributors. The business units comprising the branded footwear and licensing segment manufacture or
source, market and distribute products in a similar manner. Branded footwear and licensed products are distributed through
wholesale channels and under licensing and distributor arrangements.
The other business units in the following tables consist of the Company’s retail, tannery and pigskin procurement operations.
The Company operated 82 domestic retail stores and 14 consumer-direct internet sites at December 30, 2006 that sell
Company-manufactured and sourced products, as well as footwear manufactured by unaffiliated companies. The other
business units distribute products through retail and wholesale channels.
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The Company measures segment profits as earnings before income taxes and minority interest. The accounting policies used to
determine profitability and total assets of the branded products and other business segments are the same as disclosed in Note 1.
Business segment information is as follows:
2006
Branded Footwear
and Licensing

Other
Businesses

Corporate

Consolidated

(Thousands of Dollars)

Revenue
Intersegment sales
Interest (income) expense – net
Depreciation expense
Earnings (loss) before income taxes
Total assets
Additions to property, plant and equipment

$1,036,929
38,712
9,862
7,339
133,463
439,248
6,943

$104,958
2,798
1,050
3,859
6,976
50,040
3,205

$

—
—
(11,114)
8,443
(18,147)
181,804
6,919

$1,141,887
41,510
(202)
19,641
122,292
671,092
17,067

2005
Branded Footwear
and Licensing

Other
Businesses

Corporate

Consolidated

(Thousands of Dollars)

Revenue
Intersegment sales
Interest (income) expense – net
Depreciation expense
Earnings (loss) before income taxes
Total assets
Additions to property, plant and equipment

$ 964,522
36,232
9,706
7,845
120,668
406,024
7,975

$ 96,477
3,437
1,009
3,735
5,847
41,600
4,721

$

—
—
(8,804)
7,890
(15,268)
178,956
6,464

$1,060,999
39,669
1,911
19,470
111,247
626,580
19,160

2004
Branded Footwear
and Licensing

Other
Businesses

Corporate

Consolidated

(Thousands of Dollars)

Revenue
Intersegment sales
Interest (income) expense – net
Depreciation expense
Earnings (loss) before income taxes and minority interest
Total assets
Additions to property, plant and equipment
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$ 903,611
30,750
9,266
6,585
111,261
453,522
8,920

$ 88,298
2,939
968
3,215
4,226
39,260
3,890

$

—
—
(6,989)
8,883
(18,417)
146,789
5,270

$ 991,909
33,689
3,245
18,683
97,070
639,571
18,080

Geographic information, based on shipping destination, related to revenue from external customers included in the consolidated
statements of operations is as follows:
2006

2005

2004

(Thousands of Dollars)

United States
Foreign countries:
Europe and Russia
Canada
Central and South America
Asia
Middle East/Africa
Total foreign countries revenue

$ 721,548

$ 740,442

$718,674

266,522
80,255
20,725
44,845
8,022
420,339

219,085
66,955
12,131
13,960
8,426
320,557

193,461
49,797
9,084
11,990
8,903
273,235

$1,141,887

$1,060,999

$991,909

The Company’s long-lived assets (primarily property, plant and equipment and intangible assets) are as follows:
2006

2005

2004

(Thousands of Dollars)

United States
Foreign countries

$ 141,543
34,003

$ 131,820
40,277

$132,651
40,776

The Company does not believe that it is dependent upon any single customer, since no customer accounts for more than
10% of consolidated revenue.
The Company sources approximately 88% (based on pairs) of its footwear products from unrelated suppliers primarily located
in Asia. The remainder is produced in Company-owned manufacturing facilities in the United States and the Dominican Republic.
All licensed apparel and accessories are sourced from unrelated suppliers. While changes in suppliers could cause delays in
manufacturing and a possible loss of sales, management believes that other suppliers could provide similar products on
comparable terms.
Revenue derived from the branded footwear and licensing segment accounted for approximately 91% of revenue in 2006, 2005
and 2004. No other product groups account for more than 10% of consolidated revenue.
Approximately 10% of the Company’s employees are subject to bargaining unit contracts extending through various dates ranging
from 2007 through 2009.
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10. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)
The Company reports its quarterly results of operations on the basis of 12-week periods for each of the first three quarters and a
16- or 17-week period for the fourth quarter. The fourth quarters of 2006 and 2005 include 16 weeks.
The Company’s unaudited quarterly results of operations are as follows:
2006
First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

$262,839
105,875
19,629

$238,457
90,405
14,234

$298,856
117,542
26,140

$341,735
127,716
23,644

$

$

$

$

(Thousands of Dollars, Except Per Share Data)

Revenue
Gross margin
Net earnings
Net earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted

.36
.34

.26
.25

.48
.46

.42
.42

2005
First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

$245,175
96,406
16,133

$215,706
84,454
13,257

$279,116
108,661
24,634

$321,002
115,678
20,443

$

$

$

$

(Thousands of Dollars, Except Per Share Data)

Revenue
Gross margin
Net earnings
Net earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted

.28
.27

.23
.22

.44
.42

.37
.36

Adjustments in the fourth quarter resulted in an increase in net earnings of $743,000 ($.01 per share) in 2006 and a decrease in net
earnings of $890,000 ($.02 per share) in 2005. These adjustments related primarily to inventories.

11. Business Acquisitions
During the second quarter of 2005, the Company purchased the remaining 5% ownership from the minority stockholder of
Wolverine Europe Limited, making it a wholly-owned subsidiary. The purchase price was $2,322,000. The transaction eliminated
the minority interest of $566,000 and resulted in goodwill of $1,756,000.
On January 3, 2005, the Company converted its Cat® and Wolverine® businesses in Canada from a non-affiliated distributor-based
operation to a Company-owned wholesale operation. This expansion allowed the Company to directly wholesale all major brands
in Canada. Assets consisting primarily of inventory, fixed assets and amortizable intangible assets totaling $2,117,000 and assumed
liabilities of $883,000 were acquired from a former Wolverine® and Cat® Footwear distributor for cash of $2,280,000 and resulted
in goodwill and intangible assets of $1,046,000. Consolidated pro forma revenue and net earnings, assuming the transaction
occurred at the beginning of 2005, were not materially different from reported amounts. Pursuant to SFAS No. 142, goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangibles will not be amortized, but will be evaluated for impairment annually. Goodwill was assigned to the
Company’s branded footwear and licensing segment. The amortizable intangible assets have a weighted average useful life of
approximately ten years.
On January 3, 2005, the Company converted its Merrell® operations in Sweden and Finland and its Sebago® operations in the
United Kingdom and Germany from a non-affiliated distributor-based operation to a Company-owned wholesale operation.
Assets consisting primarily of inventory totaling $544,000 were acquired from former distributors for cash.

46 W O LV E R I N E W O R L D W I D E , I N C .

M A N A G E M E N T ’ S R E S P O N S I B I L I T Y F O R F I N A N C I A L S TAT E M E N T S
Management is responsible for the preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements and related information
appearing in this report. Management believes that the consolidated financial statements fairly reflect the form and substance of
transactions and that the financial statements reasonably present the Company’s financial position and results of operations in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Management also has included in the Company’s
financial statements amounts that are based on estimates and judgments which it believes are reasonable under the circumstances.
The independent registered public accounting firm audits the Company’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board and provides an objective, independent review of the fairness of
reported operating results and financial position.
The Board of Directors of the Company has an Audit Committee composed of four non-management directors. The Audit
Committee meets periodically with financial management, the internal auditors and the independent registered public accounting
firm to review accounting, control, auditing and financial reporting matters.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Board of Directors and Stockholders
Wolverine World Wide, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Wolverine World Wide, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 30, 2006 and December 31, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity and comprehensive
income, operations and cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 30, 2006. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of Wolverine World Wide, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 30, 200 and December 31, 2005, and the consolidated results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended December 30, 2006, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
As discussed in Note 1 and Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2006 the Company changed its method of
accounting for share-based payments and defined benefit plans in connection with the required adoption of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards Nos. 123(R) and 158, respectively.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
effectiveness of Wolverine World Wide, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006, based on criteria
established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission and our report dated February 8, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ernst & Young LLP
Grand Rapids, Michigan
February 8, 2007
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is
defined in Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006, based on the framework in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on that evaluation, our management
concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 30, 2006.
Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 30, 2006 has
been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their attestation report
which follows.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Board of Directors and Stockholders
Wolverine World Wide, Inc.
We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, that Wolverine World Wide, Inc. and subsidiaries maintained effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 30, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Wolverine World Wide, Inc.’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, management’s assessment that Wolverine World Wide, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 30, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion,
Wolverine World Wide, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 30, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
2006 consolidated financial statements of Wolverine World Wide, Inc. and subsidiaries and our report dated February 8, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Ernst & Young LLP
Grand Rapids, Michigan
February 8, 2007
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and Senior Vice President of Kellogg
Company
(a leading global cereal and specialty
food company)

Shirley D. Peterson (4)
Retired Partner of Steptoe & Johnson LLP
(law firm)

Alberto L. Grimoldi
Chairman of Grimoldi, S.A.
(shoe manufacturer and retailer
in Argentina)

Paul D. Schrage (2) (4)
Retired Chief Marketing Officer of
McDonald’s Corporation
(restaurant operator and franchisor)

David T. Kollat (1) (2) (3)
President and Chairman of 22, Inc.
(research and management
consulting firm)

Michael A. Volkema (3)
Chairman of Herman Miller, Inc.
(designer and manufacturer of office
and home furnishings)

Brenda J. Lauderback (3) (4)
Former President of the Wholesale and
Retail Group of Nine West Group, Inc.
(footwear wholesaler and retailer)

NOTES:
Member
Member
(3)
Member
(4)
Member
(1)
(2)

of
of
of
of

the
the
the
the

Executive Committee
Compensation Committee
Audit Committee
Governance Committee
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Timothy J. O’Donovan
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Blake W. Krueger
President and Chief Operating Officer
Kenneth A. Grady
General Counsel and Secretary
Stephen L. Gulis Jr.
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer
Cheryl L. Johnson
Vice President of Human Resources
Nicholas P. Ottenwess
Vice President of Finance and Corporate Controller
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FORM 10-K REPORT
A copy of this Annual Report and the Annual Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for
2006, including the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules, may be obtained by any
shareholder without charge by writing Kenneth A. Grady, General Counsel and Secretary, 9341 Courtland Drive,
Rockford, Michigan 49351 or by accessing the “Investors” section of the Company’s website.
ANNUAL MEETING
The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at the Corporate Headquarters of Wolverine World Wide, Inc.,
9341 Courtland Drive N.E., Rockford, Michigan on April 19, 2007, at 10:00 a.m.
C O R P O R AT E
HEADQUARTERS
9341 Courtland Drive, N.E.
Rockford, Michigan 49351
Telephone 616.866.5500

INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRM
Ernst & Young LLP
Grand Rapids, Michigan

C O M PA N Y W E B S I T E
www.wolverineworldwide.com

REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER AGENT
National City Bank
Shareholder Services Operations
P.O. Box 92301
Cleveland, OH 44101-4301
Telephone 800.622.6757

COMMON STOCK
LISTINGS
New York Stock Exchange
(Symbol: WWW)

I N V E S T O R R E L AT I O N S
Christi Cowdin
Director of Investor Relations
and Communications
9341 Courtland Drive, N.E.
Rockford, Michigan 49351
Telephone 616.866.6271

C E O A N D C F O C E R T I F I C AT I O N S
The Company has included as Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2 to its Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission certificates of its Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer certifying the
quality of the Company’s public disclosure. In addition, the annual certification of the CEO regarding compliance by
the Company with the corporate governance listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) was submitted
to the NYSE in accordance with applicable NYSE rules.

BATES, BATES UNIFORM FOOTWEAR, CONTINUUM,
DURASHOCKS, HUSH PUPPIES, HYTEST, I LOGO,
MERRELL, SEBAGO, STEP INTO A LEGEND, TRACK ’N
TRAIL and WOLVERINE are registered trademarks of
Wolverine World Wide, Inc.
iTECHNOLOGY, LET’S GET OUTSIDE, MULTISHOCKS,
SLICK SEAM and WOLVERINE PERFORMANCE
LEATHERS are trademarks of Wolverine World Wide, Inc.
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CAT, CAT AND DESIGN, and CATERPILLAR are registered
trademarks of CATERPILLAR INC. HARLEY-DAVIDSON is
a registered trademark of H-D Michigan, Inc. PATAGONIA is
a registered trademark of Patagonia, Inc. STANLEY is a
registered trademark of The Stanley Works or its affiliates.
Stanley Footgear, Cat Footwear, Harley-Davidson Footwear
and Patagonia Footwear produced under licenses by
Wolverine World Wide, Inc.

THREE-YEAR RESULTS

Wolverine World Wide, Inc. (NYSE:WWW) is a leading global
marketer of branded footwear, apparel and accessories. The Company’s
portfolio of owned and licensed brands includes Bates®, Cat® Footwear,
Harley-Davidson® Footwear, Hush Puppies®, Merrell®, Patagonia®
Footwear, Sebago® and Wolverine®. In 2006, nearly 47 million pairs of
footwear bearing the Company’s brand names were sold in nearly 180
countries.
The Company vision is “To Excite Consumers Around the World With
Innovative Footwear and Apparel That Bring Style to Purpose.” We are
making progress against achieving this vision by driving our brands to
global leadership positions
while pursuing initiatives
to extend into categories
beyond footwear. We are
also dedicated to
designing products that
meet the needs of our
consumers, provide
exceptional performance
and reflect each brand’s
unique point-of-view.
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A S P E C I A L O F F E R F O R O U R S H A R E H O L D E R S Experience our brands for
yourself. Shareholders are invited to take advantage of a special offer on Company products. Log onto
www.wolverineworldwide.com and click the “Shop” link in the upper right-hand corner to find out more
about this offer and browse our product selection. When you check out, enter the general shareholder
promotional code: 1909-WWWSHARE to receive this special offer.
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